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ABOUT EKADA

Corporate profile
EKADA CAPITAL (“EKADA CAPITAL” or the Company”) was first incorporated as ACMS Fund Management Ltd (“ACMS”) in 2003 and was 
involved in wealth management. It was later rebranded as AXYS Capital Management Ltd in 2009 and AfrAsia Capital Management Ltd 
(“ACM”) in 2013.

EKADA CAPITAL is a public and 100% independent asset management company based in Mauritius. It is licensed by the Financial 
Services Commission (“FSC”) as a CIS Manager, Investment Advisor (unrestricted) and Distributor of Financial Products, 
offering comprehensive and independent investment solutions to high-net-worth individuals, institutional investors and families.

Our products include Mutual Funds, Exchange Traded Funds, Structured Notes while our services range from discretionary 
to private equity advisory and family office services.

History

2003
 Incorporated as ACMS 
Fund Management Ltd

2009 
Joint venture of AXYS Capital Management Ltd 

with AfrAsia Bank Limited

Change of identity to EKADA CAPITAL LTD
Conversion into a public company and 

registration as a reporting issuer

2013
AfrAsia Capital Management Ltd 

becomes a 100% subsidiary of 
AfrAsia Bank Limited

2021

At a glance

2003
Asset Management  

company since 18 years
of expertise

20 Staff

60% men

40% women

Rs 5.3 billions AUM
as at June 2021

Continued Investment 
in technology and 

human capital

Licensed by the 
Financial Services 

Commission (‘’FSC’’)
+2,100

A public company

shareholders
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ABOUT EKADA

Shareholding structure as at 30 June 2021

EKADA CAPITAL LTD

IBL LTD
(listed on the Stock 

Exchange of Mauritius)

56.8 % 17.8% 25.3%

INTRASIA CAPITAL PTE LTD OTHER SHAREHOLDERS

Our anchor shareholders are IBL Ltd (“IBL”) and Intrasia Capital Pte Ltd (“Intrasia”).

A pro-active group since the 1830s in the historical industries of shipping and sugar industries 
in Mauritius, IBL has become one of the region’s largest diversified groups locally and 
is active in 19 countries worldwide investing in over 280 companies in nine industries globally. 
It employs more than 24,404 team members, making IBL one of Mauritius’ largest employers. 
IBL has over 12,500 shareholders.

Intrasia Group is a private business development, advisory and services group with interests spanning 
corporate and financial services, mining and energy operations, estates and agriculture. Intrasia Group 
screens its investments according to appropriate ESG standards and is sustainably managed from 
Mauritius and Singapore.

 

OUR VISION

OUR VALUES

OUR MISSION

To build sustainable performance

1. Innovation

2. Agility

3. Trust

4. Multifaceted

We aim at  providing  
first class  customers experience 
and  consistent performance

Our brand matrix

VALUE 
PROPOSITION

We provide first class 
customer experience

EXPRESSION
Clear
Smart

Educational
Initiator

PERSONALITY
Approachable

Driven
Multifaceted

Transformative

EXCELLENCES
Comprehensive

Intelligible
Relevant

Performant

RELATIONSHIPS
Respect

Transparency
Timeless
Proactive

CULTURE
Trust

Agility
Innovation

Sustainability

BRAND PILLARS
AGILITY

INNOVATION
TRUST

MULTIFACETED

MISSION
We aim at 

providing first class 
customers experience and 

consistent performance 

REPUTATION
A progressive wealth 

management partner for an 
ever-changing world
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ABOUT EKADA

Corporate information
Registered office and principal place of business

IFC4 Building
Dr. Ferrière Street
Port Louis, 11328
Mauritius

Company Secretary 

IBL Management Ltd
4th Floor IBL House 
Caudan Waterfront 
Port Louis
Mauritius

Share Registry & Transfer Office

DTOS Registry Services Ltd
3rd Floor, Eagle House
15A Wall Street
Ebene
Mauritius

Auditors

Ernst & Young
Level 9, NeXTeracom Tower 1
Cybercity
Ebene
Mauritius

Bankers

The Mauritius Commercial Bank Limited 
Sir William Newton Street
Port Louis 
Mauritius

AfrAsia Bank Limited
4th floor NeXTeracom Tower III 
Ebene
Mauritius
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LEADERSHIP

Chairman’s statement
The financial year 2021 marked a turning point for our Company: change of shareholders, change of status from private to public 
company and becoming a reporting issuer, change of name, change of offices, change of information technology architecture, 
and last but not least, change of organisational structure both at personnel and governance levels. An epic journey that the stakeholders 
of EKADA CAPITAL chose to embark together, achieving the first stages of our transformation towards becoming an independent, 
relevant, innovative and leading wealth manager.

Two intensive years under challenging circumstances were necessary to reshape the Company and transform it under its new identity: 
EKADA CAPITAL.The Company used to largely rely on the structure of its former shareholder for commercial as well as support services. 
Reaching independence therefore meant a deep restructuration on all fronts: human resources, financial, commercial, IT operations 
and governance. I seize the opportunity to thank our CEO and his team for their relentless efforts in their endeavour to prepare the 
Company in the context of the restructuring  and our new shareholders for their support on our rights issue, enabling the financing of 
the Company’s future developments.

At the same time, the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic and the FATF scoring of our jurisdiction prevented EKADA CAPITAL to fully 
leverage on its development strategy. Its international ambitions were further slowed down due to the closing of Mauritian borders 
thereby delaying its Assets Under Management growth, a key element to the company’s sustainable profitability. EKADA CAPITAL 
is seeking to expand its client base on both domestic and international markets, aiming to become a regional leader by proposing 
innovative investment solutions and services offering.

I would like to thank my fellow directors for their support in assisting EKADA CAPITAL to achieve its goals under a renewed, strong and 
supportive governance. The newly appointed directors strengthens the Board’s technical expertise on all our business lines and on 
compliance within an increasing regulatory framework.

With the support of the Board and under the leadership of its CEO, the team members of EKADA CAPITAL have been focused on shaping 
cutting edge financial services, refining its offering, and targeting unaddressed markets. Thus, I am confident that the restructuring of the 
Company will generate a positive turnaround of its financial performance in the future.

 

Mr Laurent de la Hogue
Chairperson

I seize the opportunity to 
thank our CEO and his team 
for their relentless efforts in 
their endeavour to prepare 
the Company in the context 
of the restructuring and 
our new shareholders for 
their support on our rights 
issue, enabling the financing 
of the Company’s future 
developments.
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LEADERSHIP

CEO’s report
For the first annual report as a public company, I would 
like to start by describing what EKADA CAPITAL is and 
its purposes. The word EKADA derives from the Sanskrit 
Ekhada meaning “[bringing] together”. Not a mere punchline, 
rather a full blown statement.

The Company decided to incorporate a clear state of mind and 
methodology right at the core of its DNA. We chose to build a 
future together with our stakeholders, together with our clients 
and together with our teams. 

The term “capital” 
was added to our name 
to mark the variety of the 
financial services we propose, 
which goes beyond 
portfolio management.

Our change of name marks the peak of our restructuring 
which was achieved by the end of March. To reach 
its goals, EKADA CAPITAL built a team ready to embrace 
new challenges by onboarding new talents and reorganizing 
its internal departments. An independent Research and Asset 
Management team has been set up to better serve our clientele, 
the Collective Investment Scheme offering has been reviewed and 
new international partnerships were secured to propose innovative 
and exclusive financial products as well as value-added services. 
EKADA CAPITAL further modernized its operations, by investing in 
new premises and streamlining processes with a state-of-the-art 
asset management software. EKADA CAPITAL finally strengthened 
its governance by enhancing the diversity and technical expertise 
of the Board of Directors.

EKADA CAPITAL is a company licensed and regulated by the 
Financial Services Commission. It conducts its activities under 
three specific licenses: Investment Advisor (unrestricted), 
Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) Manager and Distribution 
of Financial Products. The first licence allows us to provide 
financial investment advisory services, including discretionary 
portfolio management. The CIS Manager license enables us to 
manage mutual funds and the Distribution of Financial Products 
license allows us to market third-party financial products such 
as structured notes, exchange traded funds and mutual funds. 
EKADA CAPITAL serves a large variety of clientele ranging from 
Institutional investors to High-Net-Worth Individuals and 
family offices.

The financial year 2021 was very challenging. The teams 
have been dedicated to finalize the restructuring of the 
Company which started in the late 2019 while mitigating the 
consequences of the pandemic and unfavourable FATF scoring 
of the Mauritian jurisdiction. The latter forced long-established 
partnerships in Europe to be cancelled while the former prevented 
us to visit prospects and customers worldwide, cutting the sales 
team short of raising new Assets Under Management (“AUM”) 
internationally. 

Fortunately, the deployment of our new IT architecture right before 
the second lockdown in Mauritius allowed the team members to 
work securely from home thereby ensuring a smooth continuation 
of our day-to-day operations. The Company maintained a half 
gauge of office occupancy till the end of the restrictions while 
maintaining strict health and safety protocols to protect its staff.

The Company encountered mixed commercial performance 
during the last year. The Company lost a bid to renew a historical 
discretionary management contract representing MUR 480m AUM 
with a pension fund client who favoured an international bank in 
September 2020. Two other international private clients totalizing 
MUR 320m AUM were also lost in March and April as a direct 
consequence of the uncertain Mauritian economic environment 
and the weakness of the Mauritian rupee against hard currencies. 

On a positive note, 
the Company raised MUR 485m 
from the domestic market 
in AUM from private clients 
during the fourth quarter 
of the financial year. 

Although not fully compensating for the loss of about MUR 800m 
in AUM from historical clients this net new money intake sets 
the trend and pace for the months to come. The total AUM of the 
company stood at MUR 5.3 bn at the end of the financial year 
against MUR 5.8 bn the year before. MUR 4.7bn are managed 
under discretionary mandates, MUR 3.2bn with Institutional 
clients and MUR 1.5 bn with High-Net-Worth Individuals (HNWI) 
respectively. The remaining MUR 600m are managed through 
our two thematic funds.

It is worth noting that on the CIS business line front, our EKADA 
Yield Fund was the best amongst its fixed income peers in 
Mauritius, ahead of our competitors. The EKADA India Focus Fund, 
invested in Indian equity only, posted a strong year-to-year 
performance of 56.2% as at June 2021, delivering a steady 91.3% 
performance since inception, beating its index of reference by 
more than 30%. EKADA CAPITAL will now dedicate specific 
commercial resources to increase AUM on our two mutual funds.

The Company also re-launched its distribution activities having 
under negotiations exclusive partnerships with international 
prime issuers and funds managers, enlarging its offering 
capabilities. With the Mauritian borders reopening in October 2021, 
management will concentrate on raising new AUM in Africa, 
Europe, Asia and Mauritius across all its market segments.

On the financial side, the Company has not yet reached its 
recovery point as at June 2021. The restructuring required heavy 
investments financed in the early stages by loans from our main 
shareholders and subsequently covered by our successful rights 
issue of MUR 50m. At the same time revenues decreased by 
29% to MUR 28.9m as a direct consequence of the necessary 
measures following the restructuring and of the economic 
environment. Operating costs rose by 17% to almost MUR 56m. 

The company decided to 
incorporate a clear state of 
mind and methodology right at 
the core of its DNA. We chose 
to build a future together with 
our stakeholders, together with 
our clients and together with 
our teams.
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LEADERSHIP

Two-thirds of the cost increase are attributable to exceptional 
elements linked to the restructuring including the administrative, 
legal, regulatory and professional fees amounting to almost 
MUR 9m. Careful investment monitoring and cost control 
measures put in place by management allowed nevertheless to 
reduce a projected deficit of MUR 28.39m down to MUR 25.75m. 
To reach a financial equilibrium of its operations, EKADA CAPITAL 
needs to double its income across all its business lines. 
Management will continue to build EKADA CAPITAL’s brand 
and deploy its development strategy on the domestic and 
international markets. 

Management is confident 
in achieving a full recovery of the 
Companys’ activities by the end 
of the financial year 2023.

I would like to end by thanking our esteemed clients for their trust 
in EKADA CAPITAL. We make it our mission to deliver first class 
asset management services. I want to thank our shareholders 
for their unflinching support and allowing EKADA CAPITAL to 
be innovative. I reiterate my thanks to the directors of the Board 
for their agile guidance. I finally thank our multifaceted team for 
its dedication in fulfilling our mission.

Trust, Innovation, Agility and Multifaceted are the core values 
EKADA CAPITAL shares with all its stakeholders, with the vision 
to build sustainable performance, Together.

Mr Eric Ambroise
CEO
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LEADERSHIP

From left to right: Mr Jean-Claude Béga, Mrs Christine Coothoopermal, Mr Graeme Robertson, Mr Kailash (Satyam) Ramnauth, Mr Laurent de la Hogue, 
Mr Eric Ambroise, Mr Alain Zerzuben.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS



20 | EKADA ANNUAL REPORT 2021 EKADA ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 21 

LEADERSHIP

Mr Laurent de la Hogue
Non-Executive Chairman,  
resident in Mauritius
Appointed: 13 October 2015
Mr Laurent de la Hogue holds a Master 
degree in Management and Finance from 
the “Ecole Supérieure de Gestion et Finance” 
of Paris, France. He completed a 
Risk Management Programme from INSEAD, 
Singapore and a General Management 
Programme from ESSEC Business School. 
He started his career with an international 
bank before joining GML Management 
Ltd in 2001 as Treasurer where he was 
involved in the setting up of the group 
central treasury management unit and in 
development of projects. He is the Head of 
Financial Services of IBL Ltd since July 2016. 
He serves as Director on a number of 
organisations operating in the industrial, 
commercial, financial (regulated entities) 
and investment sectors.

He is currently the Non-Executive Chairman 
of EKADA CAPITAL, IBL Treasury Ltd and 
LCF Securities Ltd. 

Directorships in listed companies:

• The United Basalt Products Ltd
• Lux Island Resorts Ltd

Mr Eric Ambroise
Chief Executive Officer  
and Executive Director,  
resident in Mauritius
Appointed: 30 January 2020
Mr Eric Ambroise is a Postgraduate 
in Financial Management (Master in 
Management with Neoma Business 
School-Hons., MBA Exchange with SMU 
Edwin L. Cox School of Business) and 
Law (Master in Business Law, joint Erasmus 
curricular with the University of Rennes 
and the University of Wales, Cardiff Law 
School) and his academic background has 
enabled his broad appreciation of business 
solutions. He is an experienced professional 
with a track record in international business 
development and has demonstrated the ability 
to deliver international financial, sales and 
process expertise across various business 
sectors (finance, real estate, oil & gas projects 
industry). He has also proven successful in 
cross-cultural team leadership. He has joined 
EKADA CAPITAL mid-2019 as Chief Risk 
and Operating Officer and was promoted as 
Chief Executive Officer since January 2020.

Directorships in listed companies: None

Mr Jean-Claude Béga, FCCA
Non-Executive Director,  
resident in Mauritius
Appointed: 13 October 2015
Mr Jean-Claude Béga started his career in 
1980 by spending 7 years as an external 
auditor and then moved to a sugar group 
to perform various functions within 
accounting and finance. He joined GML 
in 1997 as Finance Manager. He is currently 
the Group Head of Financial Services and 
Business Development of IBL. He is a fellow 
of the Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants and completed a one-year 
General Management program at ESSEC.

Directorships in listed companies:

• IBL Ltd
• BlueLife Limited 

(Non-Executive Chairman)
• Lux Island Resorts Ltd 

(Non-Executive Chairman)
• Phoenix Beverages Limited
• The Bee Equity Partners Ltd 

(Non-Executive Chairman)

Board of directors

Profiles of directors at 30 June 2021

Mrs Christine Coothoopermal
Non-Executive Director,  
resident in Mauritius
Appointed: 23 June 2021, eligible for 
election at the annual meeting 2021
Mrs Christine Coothoopermal holds a 
law degree from the University of Mauritius. 
She completed her Bar Vocational Course 
in 2008 at the Council of Legal Education 
in Mauritius. She was called to the Bar 
in Mauritius in 2011 and is a member of 
the Mauritius Bar Association. Her main 
areas of practice focus on company law, 
commercial law and financial services. 
She also has experience in banking and 
finance transactions. She joined IBL Ltd 
in 2017 as Senior Legal Advisor.

Directorship in listed companies: None 

Mr Graeme Robertson,  
BA, FAICD, MAIE
Non-Executive Director,  
resident in Singapore
Appointed: 13 October 2015
Educated in Sydney, Australia, 
Mr. Graeme Robertson has lived in 
Southeast Asia for most of his life and 
has been responsible for pioneering the 
development and managing internationally 
world class mining, energy and infrastructure 
operations. He is a recipient of the 
ASEAN Development and the Millennium 
500 Awards in 1996 and 2000 respectively 
for his contribution to growing significant 
commercial operations in developing 
nations in Asia. Mr. Graeme Robertson 
is the Chairperson and owner of Intrasia 
Capital Pte Ltd, a private investment group 
in Singapore with subsidiaries in corporate 
and investment services in Mauritius. He is 
also the Chairperson of the listed company 
Intra Energy Corporation for mining in 
Southern and Eastern Africa and a Director 
of Minbos Resources for fertilizer supply 
from Angola. Mr. Graeme Robertson is 
a humanitarian with interests in poverty 
alleviation, education and health improvement. 
He is Chairperson of the AfrAsia Foundation 
in Mauritius.

Directorships in listed companies:

• Intra Energy Corporation Limited (listed 
on the Australian Securities Exchange)

• Minbos Resources Limited (listed on 
the Australian Securities Exchange)
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LEADERSHIP

Board of directors (continued)

Profiles of directors appointed by the Board after year end

Mr Kailash (Satyam) Ramnauth
Independent Non-Executive 
Director, resident in Mauritius
Appointed: 30 July 2021, eligible for 
election at the annual meeting 2021
Mr Ramnauth brings more than 25 years of 
experience in the financial services sector. 
He is one of the pioneers of private equity in 
Africa with the Commonwealth Development 
Corporation (CDC) including Mauritius with 
Mauritius Venture Capital Fund, Indian Ocean 
Regional Fund and with MCB Equity Fund. 
In 2006, he joined the International Finance 
Corporation (IFC) which is part of the World 
Bank Group where he held the positions of 
senior investment officer, principal investment 
officer and regional country manager. He has 
travelled extensively in Sub-Saharan Africa 
and has lived in South Africa and Madagascar. 
He retired from the IFC in 2019.

Mr Ramnauth has extensive transactional 
investment and corporate finance experience 
in various sectors including the financial 
services sector. As IFC’s regional country 
manager (2013-19), he participated in 
country economic diagnostic and analysis, 
sector reviews and assessment for Mauritius 
and the Indian ocean islands. He has held 
Independent Non-Executive board positions 
in Mauritius before joining the World Bank 
Group. He has also held non-executive board 
positions to support the equity investments 
under the private equity funds’ mandate. 
Mr Ramnauth was a member of the corporate 
governance task team for the introduction of 
the first report on Corporate Governance for 
Mauritius in 2003 and recently co-authored 
the Corporate Governance guideline for Fragile 
and Conflict States for the World Bank Group. 

Directorships in listed companies: None

Mr Alain Zerzuben
Independent Non-Executive 
Director, resident in Mauritius
Appointed: 2 August 2021, eligible for 
election at the annual meeting 2021
Mr Alain Zerzuben is the Managing Director 
and Sole Shareholder of Dolomites Ltd, 
a domestic company which provides 
management and consulting services; 
an acting Board Member of Hottinger AG, 
a bank in Zurich; the Chairman of Elite Asia 
Fund and; a Council Member of various 
Foundations. Throughout his career, 
Mr Zerzuben has worked for several banks in 
Zurich while occupying senior job positions 
such as auditor, advisor and CFO. With his 
extensive expertise in the world of banking 
and finance, he eventually became the Head 
of Finance and Administration, Managing 
Partner and Shareholder, COO/CFO and 
Deputy CEO at a reputable bank in Zurich. 
Further to his experience in setting up 
asset management companies and funds 
in Mauritius, today, Mr Zerzuben has a 
bountiful in-depth experience in establishing 
an efficient banking system, accounting, 
back-office management, IT, private equity, 
banking rules and regulations, audit, 
compliance and risk control.

Directorships in listed companies: None

Mr Francois Wertheimer
Alternate Director to Mr Graeme 
Robertson, resident in Singapore
Mr Francois Wertheimer has over 25 years 
of investment banking and corporate finance 
experience in Asia, Europe and the US. 
He specialises on advising Asian groups 
and financial sponsors on their M&A and 
fund-raising requirements as well as 
international companies on their growth 
and development strategies in Asia. 
Francois began his career in New York with 
JP Morgan Chase and then was in London 
with Dresdner Kleinwort Benson before 
moving to Asia. He became a Managing 
Director of Corporate Finance at HSBC 
and subsequently served as CEO of HSBC 
Investment Bank in Indonesia. He then joined 
BNP Paribas as Head of Corporate Finance 
and Investment Banking for South East Asia 
before becoming Managing Director of 
Capital Asia Partners.

Directorships in listed companies: None

Senior management 

Profiles of senior managers at 30 June 2021

Mr Amédée Maingard  
De la Ville-es-Offrans
Head of Business Development 
Mr Amédée Maingard holds degrees in 
economics and commerce from the University 
of Western Australia. He is an experienced 
professional with 8 years in private banking 
at HSBC in France. He created Lamivoie 
Capital Partners in 2015, a privately owned 
multi-family office out of Hong Kong and 
Mauritius. Mr Amédée Maingard has also been 
actively involved as an investor and advisor in 
the Hong Kong start up community for over 
4 years,  with 15+ unlisted investments.

He returned to Mauritius after having spent 
over 8 years in Asia. Mr Amédée Maingard 
has joined EKADA CAPITAL as its Head of 
Business Development to help build a global 
presence and level of service for its current 
and future clients. In addition to this, he brings 
with him a deep knowledge of alternative 
investments, with numerous investments 
in private equity, private debt and direct 
investments in Asia, Europe and the US.

Profile of alternate director 
at 30 June 2021

Mrs Sandrine Wong Kee Chuan
Head of Legal and  
Regulatory Affairs 
Mrs Sandrine Wong Kee Chuan holds an LLB 
from the City Law School, London, UK and 
did her Bar Vocational Course at the Inns 
of Court School of Law (City Law School) 
in London. She was called to the Bar of 
England and Wales in 2009 at the Honourable 
Society of the Middle Temple and was 
called to the Mauritian Bar in 2011 and is a 
member of the Mauritius Bar Association. 
She spent 2 years as a junior Barrister at 
an award-winning Mauritian law firm where 
she gained considerable expertise over 
various aspects of corporate and commercial 
law, including advisory, banking, financial 
and fund management services. For more 
than three years, as in-house Counsel, 
she headed the legal and compliance 
department and acted as Secretary to the 
Board of a management company, which 
was an entity licensed and regulated by 
the Financial Services Commission of 
Mauritius. Mrs Sandrine Wong Kee Chuan 
has a modern approach to compliance, 
leadership, management and strategy 
with proven ability to provide proactive 
leadership along with a pragmatic and 
efficient approach. She is also the holder 
of a Post-Graduate Diploma in Corporate 
Governance by the Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries and Administrators.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate profile
EKADA CAPITAL, formerly known as AfrAsia Capital Management Ltd, incorporated in Mauritius on 25 April 2003, was converted 
from a private company limited by shares to a public company on 19 January 2021. The Company is a non-listed Reporting Issuer 
and is licensed by the Financial Services Commission as a CIS Manager, Investment Advisor and Distributor of Financial Products. 
The Company therefore meets the definition of being a Public Interest Entity (“PIE”).

Compliance with the National Code of Corporate Governance
The Board of the Company fully supports the principles of good corporate governance as set out in the National Code of Corporate 
Governance for Mauritius 2016 which is based on an “apply and explain basis”. The Board has always recognised the importance of 
good governance to ensure continued growth and success.

Principle 1: Governance structure
Board charter
The governance structure of the Company is set out in its board charter which has been approved by the Board since September 2018 
and a reviewed version of which has been adopted in September 2021. The board charter defines the role, function and objectives 
of the Board, the Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”). It also sets out how they interact in order to promote efficient, 
transparent and ethical functioning and decision-making processes within the Company. The Board reviews the conformity of the board 
charter as and when deemed necessary.

The board charter is available on the website of EKADA CAPITAL at: www.ekadacapital.com 

Organisational chart as at 30 June 2021

Chairman
Mr Laurent de la Hogue

Chief Executive Officer
Mr Eric Ambroise

Head of Business Development
Mr Amédée Maingard 
De la Ville-es-Offrans

Head of Legal and Regulatory Affairs
Mrs Sandrine Wong Kee Chuan

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The profiles of the senior management team members can be found at page 23 of this report.

Senior governance positions
The Board has approved appropriate job descriptions of senior governance positions as detailed in this report. 

Role and function of the Chairman
The Board of the Company is headed by Mr Laurent de la Hogue who, as Chairman of the Board, provides overall leadership 
without limiting individual responsibility for decisions taken collectively by the Board. The other role and functions assumed by 
the Chairman include, inter alia, the following: 

• Ensuring the smooth functioning of the Board in the interests of good governance
• Ensuring the proper conduct of meetings and accurate documentation of proceedings thereof
• Encouraging the active participation of each director in discussions and board matters
• Ensuring that relevant information is tabled to the Board to enable the directors to reach informed decisions

Role and function of the Chief Executive Officer
Mr Eric Ambroise has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer by the Board in December 2019 (subject to regulatory approval which 
was obtained in January 2020) and ensures the day-to-day running of the business activities of the Company. His role and functions, 
as approved by the Board, are separate from that of the Chairman and as Chief Executive Officer, he is responsible for, inter alia:

• Ensuring that the Company’s strategy and policies are implemented
• Ensuring that the Company’s financial and operating objectives are achieved
• Leading and directing senior management
• Providing insights for short and medium term development of the Company
• Maintaining a close working relationship with the Chairman of the Company

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary, IBL Management Ltd, is available to provide assistance and information on governance and corporate 
administration issues. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that applicable laws 
and regulations are complied with. IBL Management Ltd has the primary responsibility for guiding the Board as regards their duties 
and responsibilities and is also responsible for taking accurate and precise Board minutes which are then submitted for approval at the 
subsequent meeting.

Code of Conduct and Ethics Policy including whistleblowing policy
A Code of Conduct and Ethics Policy has been approved by the Board and all employees are required to maintain the highest standards 
of integrity and ethical conduct when dealing with the Company’s stakeholders. The Board is responsible for monitoring and evaluating 
compliance with its Code of Conduct and Ethics Policy.

The whistleblowing policy adopted by the Company is included within the said Code of Conduct and Ethics Policy which is also available 
on the website of the Company.

Management agreement
No major agreements, other than those in the ordinary course of business, were contracted by the Company during the year under review.
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Principle 2: The structure of the Board and its committees
Role and responsibilities of the Board
The Board plays a key role in determining the Company’s direction, policies, strategies, monitoring its performance and overseeing 
risks so that the viability of the Company is sustained at all times. As such, it is collectively responsible and accountable, in line with 
the relevant laws and regulations, to its clients and shareholders and aims at protecting and enhancing shareholders value.

In addition, the Board has the responsibility to oversee that internal control systems and reporting arrangements are in place for 
the effective, prudent and efficient administration of the assets and liabilities of the Company.

The Board of directors is thus committed to the highest standard of business integrity, ethics, transparency and professionalism in all 
its activities, so as to achieve continuing prosperity for the Company.

Changes of directors
Mrs Christine Coothoopermal was appointed as director of the Company on 23 June 2021, in replacement of Mr Dipak Chummun who 
resigned as director of the Company on the same date.

The Board approved the appointments of Messrs Kailash (Satyam) Ramnauth and Alain Zerzuben as Independent Non-Executive 
Directors on 26 and 30 April 2021, respectively, subject to the corresponding approvals of the Financial Services Commission (“FSC”) 
being obtained. The approvals of the FSC have been received on 30 July 2021 for Mr Ramnauth and on 2 August 2021 for Mr Zerzuben, 
on which dates the said appointments have been effective, respectively. 

Board composition and independence
The Board of the Company is composed of four Non-Executive Directors, one executive director and two Independent Non-Executive 
Directors, and operates under the direction of the Chairman who was appointed by the directors.

The Board will consider the appointment of another executive director on the Board of the Company, in line with the requirements of 
the Code.

The two Independent Non-Executive Directors have neither been an employee of the Company nor did they have a material business with 
the Company within the past 3 years.

The Board believes that the directors possess the appropriate skills and experience.

Board diversity
During the year under the review, the Board has appointed a female director to improve the diversity of its members. Besides, the directors 
come from diverse backgrounds which enhances their contribution to Board decisions. 

The profiles of the directors of the Company can be found on pages 20 to 22 of this report. Details of other directorships are available 
upon request being made to the Company Secretary, IBL Management Ltd, 4th Floor, IBL House, Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis.

Common directorships
The Directors and Alternate Director of the Company who also sit on the boards of the main holding companies of EKADA, namely IBL Ltd 
(“IBL”) and Intrasia Capital Pte Ltd (“Intrasia”) (see page 39 for shareholding structure) are:

Names IBL Intrasia

Mr Jean-Claude Béga x

Mr Graeme Robertson x

Mr Francois Wertheimer x

Board processes
Pursuant to the board charter, board meetings are scheduled in advance. All directors are provided with complete, adequate and timely 
information prior to meetings to enable them to fulfil their duties properly.

Beginning of the year Before Board meeting Board meeting After Board meeting

• Planning for Board 
meetings for the 
ensuing year is set by 
the Company Secretary 
and communicated to 
Directors

• Draft agendas for the 
Board are finalised 
with the CEO and the 
Chairperson prior to 
each meeting

• Agenda and all relevant 
Board papers are sent 
to the Directors seven 
calendar days before 
the scheduled meeting

• Agenda items are 
discussed supported 
by presentation from 
the management or any 
other relevant attendee

• Minutes are produced 
and sent to the 
management and the 
Chairperson for review 
and comments prior to 
circulating these to the 
Board members

• Follow-up on Board 
decisions are 
then ensured by 
management as well as 
the Company Secretary

During the year under review, the directors met only once on 26 April 2021.

The attendance report at Board meeting for the year ended 30 June 2021 is shown below. 

Names Attendance

Mr Laurent de la Hogue 1 out of 1

Mr Eric Ambroise 1 out of 1

Mr Jean-Claude Béga 1 out of 1

Mr Dipak Chummun 1 out of 1

Mrs Christine Coothoopermal* 0 out of 0

Mr Graeme Robertson 1 out of 1

Mr Francois Wertheimer** 1 out of 1

* Mrs Christine Coothoopermal has not been convened to the said meeting since she was appointed on 23 June 2021 (i.e., after the date of the Board meeting).

** Mr Francois Wertheimer being the alternate director of Mr Graeme Robertson, he attended the Board meeting held on 26 April 2021 upon approval having been 
obtained by all Board members.

Board decisions
While the Board met only once during the year under review, several decisions were taken by way of written resolutions. Below is a list of 
the main items discussed and approved:

• Interim financial statements for the quarters ended 31 March 2020, 30 September 2020, 31 December 2020, 31 March 2021
• Audited financial statements and annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020
• Conversion of the Company from a private to a public company
• Appointment of DTOS Registry Services Ltd as share registry and transfer office
• Recommendation to the shareholder of the adoption of a constitution
• Approval of list of shareholders following distribution of the shares of the Company by AfrAsia Bank Limited (“ABL”) as a dividend in specie
• Registration as a Reporting Issuer
• Change of name to EKADA CAPITAL and approval of communiqué
• Banking facilities
• Rights Issue exercise, its outcome and communiqués
• Convening of Special meeting of shareholders
• Creation of Board committees
• Directors’ fees
• Appointments of Independent Non-Executive Directors and female Non-Executive Director
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Principle 2: The structure of the Board and its committees (continued)
Annual effectiveness review
The Board confirms that, for the year under review, it has met its key objectives and carried out its responsibilities effectively in 
accordance with its Charter.

Board committees
The Board has approved the setting up of two Board committees during the year under review, namely the Audit and Risk Committee 
and the Corporate Governance Committee, which will also act as the Nomination Committee as well as Remuneration Committee. 
These Committees will operate within defined terms of reference and may not exceed the authority delegated by the Board. 
The Committees will be chaired by experienced chairpersons who shall report to the Board on the main issues discussed at each of 
their meetings.

The Company Secretary is also acting as secretary to the Board Committees. Each member of the Board shall have access to the 
minutes of meetings of Board Committees, regardless of whether the Director is a member of the Board Committee in question or not.

Given the composition of the committees which shall be chaired by newly appointed directors, it has been agreed that the committees 
will meet for the first time following the approval of the audited financial statements for the year under review.

Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee (“ARC”) shall assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. It is the Committee’s responsibility 
to review the integrity of the financial statements and the effectiveness of the internal and external auditors. The Committee also 
oversees that management has established effective systems of internal control. It assists in creating an environment and structures for 
risk management to operate effectively.

The Audit and Risk Committee will be governed by its Charter which shall be adopted shortly and be made available for consultation on 
the website of the Company on www.ekadacapital.com 

Composition
The appointed Chairperson of the ARC is Mr Kailash (Satyam) Ramnauth who is an Independent Non-Executive Director. The Board 
considers that the latter has substantial accounting and financial experience to chair the Audit and Risk Committee. The other 
members of the Committee are Mr Laurent de la Hogue, Non-Executive Chairman and Mr Alain Zerzuben, another Independent 
Non Executive Director. The meetings of the Committee are also to be attended by the CEO, Mr Eric Ambroise, as well as the internal and 
external auditors as and when required.

Corporate Governance Committee
The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”) has been set up in order to advise the Board on matters pertaining to corporate 
governance and to ensure that the principles of the Code of Corporate Governance are applied. This Committee shall also act as the 
Nomination Committee as well as the Remuneration Committee of the Company. 

The Corporate Governance Committee will be governed by its Charter which shall be adopted shortly and be made available for 
consultation on the website of the Company on www.ekadacapital.com 

Composition
The appointed Chairperson of the CGC is Mr Alain Zerzuben who is an Independent Non-Executive Director. The other members of 
the Committee are Messrs Jean-Claude Béga, Laurent de la Hogue and Graeme Robertson, who are all Non-Executive Directors. 
The meetings of the Committee are also to be attended by the CEO, Mr Eric Ambroise as and when required. 

Principle 3: Director appointment procedures
Appointment of directors, election and re-election

Potential candidates identified and selected by the Corporate Governance Committee and recommended to the Board of directors

Appointment of new director by the Board of Directors, subject to approval from the Financial Services Commission being received

Newly appointed Director is subject to election in first year of appointment by the shareholders at the annual meeting

Once appointed and in accordance with the Constitution, non-execuitve directors shall hold office until completion of three 
consecutive years on the Board of the Company, after which they shall offer themselves for re-election at the following 
annual meeting of the shareholders of the Company

After completing nine consecutive years on the Board of a Company, an Independent Non-Executive Director shall no longer be 
considered as independent. A cooling period of three consecutive years shall be required before a director who previously held 
office may be considered as independent.

Induction and orientation
The Company Secretary assists the Chairperson in ensuring that an induction programme is in place for all new Directors to enable them 
to develop a good understanding of the Company and of its activities. As per the Board Charter, all newly appointed Directors receive an 
induction pack containing documents pertaining to their role, duties and responsibilities.

One-to-one briefings 
with the Chairperson 
of the Board and CEO

Detailed briefings with 
Senior Executives 

as applicable
Visit of offices

One-to-one 
briefing with the 

Company Secretary

BOARD INDUCTION 
PROGRAMME

Furthermore, since EKADA CAPITAL is licensed by the FSC and is a reporting issuer, every newly appointed director must submit to 
this authority, through the Company Secretary, a detailed personal questionnaire, complete due diligence documents and a declaration of 
interests in the Company.
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Principle 3: Director appointment procedures (continued)
Succession planning
The Board assumes the responsibilities for succession planning and stays guided by its main shareholders in the matter. The Board, 
upon the recommendation of the Corporate Governance Committee acting as Nomination Committee, is responsible for preparing the 
succession plan for directors and assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board believes that good 
succession planning is a key contributor in the delivery of the Company’s strategy. The Board is committed to recognising and nurturing 
talent within executive and management levels to ensure that the Company creates opportunities to develop current and future leaders.

Principle 4: Director duties, remuneration and performance
Directors’ duties
Directors are aware of their legal duties. Once appointed on the Board, directors receive the following documents pertaining to their duties 
and responsibilities:

• Charters
• Constitution
• Salient features of the Securities Act 2005, Financial Services Act as well as the Companies Act 2001

Time commitments
Board members are expected to dedicate such time as is necessary for them to effectively discharge their duties. Directors have a 
duty to act in the best interests of the Company and are expected to ensure that their other responsibilities do not impinge on their 
responsibilities as directors.

Interest register, conflicts of interest and related party transactions
EKADA CAPITAL being registered as a reporting issuer under the Securities Act 2005 administered by the Financial Services Commission, 
the Company ensures that it abides by all relevant disclosure requirements. As such, written records of any interests in the shares of 
EKADA CAPITAL which would be held by the officers and directors or any change in their holdings are kept in a register of interests.

In accordance with the Companies Act 2001, as soon as a director becomes aware that they are interested in a transaction, the interest 
must be reported to the Company. In this respect, at each Board meeting of the Company, an item is included within the agenda 
requesting directors to declare any interests which might arise in the matters to be discussed.

The management of conflicts of interest and related party transactions is also conducted in accordance with the code of conduct and 
ethics policy, the Board Charter of EKADA CAPITAL and any other relevant legislation. Please refer to note 20 of the Financial Statements.

The register of interests is updated on a continuous basis with any subsequent transactions entered into by the directors. The register 
of interests is maintained by the Company Secretary and available to the shareholder upon written request being made to the latter.

The directors and officers of EKADA CAPITAL having direct or indirect interests in the ordinary shares of the Company at 30 June 2021 
were as follows:

Directors 
Direct interest Indirect interest

Number of shares Percentage holding Percentage holding

Mr Eric Ambroise 499,848 0.18% -

Mr Graeme Robertson 3,105,244 1.11% 17.87%

Officers 
Direct interest Indirect interest

Number of shares Percentage holding Percentage holding

Mr Amédée Maingard De la Ville-es-Offrans 499,845 0.18% -

Statement of remuneration philosophy
Since the financial year 2017-2018, the Board had approved to pay an annual fee of Rs 70,000 to each Non-Executive Director. For the 
year ended 30 June 2021, remuneration paid to the sole executive director, being the Chief Executive Officer, amounted to Rs 6,470,000 
(2020: Rs 1,875,000).

During the year under review, the Board has validated the new fees to be paid to the Non-Executive Directors for the year ending 
30 June 2022, subject to same being approved by the Shareholders during the next annual meeting of the Company, as per below:

Role 
Annual fees

(Rs)

Chairperson of the Board 125,000

Member of the Board 100,000 

Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee 75,000

Member of the Audit and Risk Committee 50,000

Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 40,000

Member of the Corporate Governance Committee 30,000

Share options plan 
The Company does not have any share options plan.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy has been subscribed to by the Company. The policy provides cover for the risks arising 
out of the acts or omissions of the directors and officers of the Company.

Information, information technology and information security governance
The Board is responsible for the governance of information. It is the role of senior executives to manage information technology and 
ensure information security.

Should a significant expenditure on information technology be required, management ensures that such expenditure is presented to 
the directors within the budgeted capex which is discussed and approved by the Board on an annual basis or that the said expense is 
authorised by the directors as a separate capex item as and when necessary. During the year under review and following the unbundling 
of the Company, a major investment in IT infrastructure has been approved by the Board and subsequently by the Shareholders at a 
Special meeting held on 21 May 2021.

With the unbundling from its previous shareholder, the restructuring of the Company and its change of name, the necessary set-up of 
distant working capabilities due to Covid-19, the set-up of our new offices and the global rise of digital threats, the management focused 
on deploying a new IT infrastructure. In particular the following key milestones have been achieved during the course of this financial year:

• Set-up of a new independent internal physical network with enhanced firewall protection, while still in the bank’s premises (January),
• Transfer of domain names, mails, files and directory services (March) to a new service provider,
• Set-up of outsourced IT admin and support services,
• Deployment of a new website (March)
• Deployment of protected cloud services to host our core applications allowing for better collaboration tools, enhanced security with 

automated backups and file history, high availability, scalability and reduced TCO (February through May),
• Set-up of a new IT physical and logical infrastructure in our new premises and set-up of a dedicated secured server room (May),
• Set up of rigorous data access group policies,
• Renewal of the computer fleet with hardened access protection both to the machines and to our network with systematic 

encryption (May),
• Set-up of a new PABX on dedicated network with secured and encrypted global distant connection capabilities.

Along the efforts brought to the infrastructure, management organised two training sessions with the whole staff of the Company in 
June 2021 to strengthen digital security awareness. The training was dispensed by a certified and accredited IT security company.
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Principle 4: Director duties, remuneration and performance (continued)
Information, information technology and information security governance (continued)
Clients supply the Company with personal information, from which client’s identity may be directly or indirectly determined, in connection 
with on boarding subscription into investment products and/or provision of investment management services. Personal client data is 
kept confidential and is used to meet the legal and regulatory obligations in relation to checking identification and conducting background 
screening of clients, to avoid money laundering and terrorist financing, to meet the obligations to record keeping, and to make relevant 
disclosures under any law, regulator or court order, or under and for the purpose of any guideline issued by regulatory authorities. If the 
client does not wish EKADA CAPITAL to provide personal client data in direct marketing, the client may opt out by email notification. 
The client has the right to request access to and correction of the personal client data in accordance with the provisions of the data 
protection laws of Mauritius. 

EKADA CAPITAL will further conduct regular and independent security testing of its newly set-up infrastructure (procedural and 
configuration audits, penetration tests, security awareness testing).

Board and director appraisal
Even though it is a requirement of the Code that the performance of a Board and its directors be monitored and evaluated annually, 
such an exercise has not been conducted as at date. Given the recent changes in the composition of the Board, it has been agreed that an 
evaluation of the Board and its directors will be conducted subsequently, once the newly appointed directors would be more acquainted with 
the Company and its processes and activities.

Training and development
Though the Board has not been organising or enrolling its members on specific training sessions, except for the CEO as executive director 
who is regularly participating in training and courses, it encourages all its members to keep enhancing their knowledge and competencies 
and to keep themselves up to date with the latest workplace trends and professional practices. Given the new regulations applicable in terms 
of AML/CFT, EKADA CAPITAL will surely enrol the Board and senior management in a course specifically designed to tally its context and 
activities during the next financial year.

Principle 5: Risk governance and internal control
Risk management, internal controls and internal audit
The Board is ultimately responsible for the governance of risk and for determining the nature and extent of the principal risks it is willing 
to take in achieving its strategic objectives. The Board is also liable for the system of internal controls, which is designed to provide 
reasonable assurance against material misstatement and loss. The Company maintains a system of financial control that is designed to 
provide assurance regarding the keeping of proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information used within the business 
and for publication.

Whilst the Audit and Risk Committee shall provide an oversight on risk governance, the nature and risk appetite of EKADA CAPITAL 
remain the ultimate responsibility of the Board.

The responsibility of the Board in this respect includes, amongst others:

• Ensuring that structures and processes are in place for management of risks
• Identifying the principal risks and uncertainties
• Ensuring that management has developed and implemented the relevant framework
• Ensuring that systems and processes are in place for implementing, maintaining and monitoring internal controls
• Identifying any deficiency in the system of internal control

Following on the comprehensive and continuous risk management exercise conducted by the Board since 2016, the Board successfully 
monitored the Risk Register with a view to lead the Company to its independence. A specific action plan was drafted in 2019 in view of 
monitoring and mitigating the inherent risks of such an operation. The plan led to the nomination of a Chief Risks and Operations Officer 
and during the two following years, all the areas covered by the Risk Register were closely monitored. Specific mitigation solutions were 
found, and all risk areas were covered: strategic, financial, governance, operational, compliance and legal risks. As an illustration from 
a financial perspective, the Rights issue conducted in 2021 allowed to mitigate the risks due to the financial regulatory requirement 
imposed on the Company.

Since the independence and the termination of the global Service Level Agreement covering the risk monitoring by the former shareholder, 
the Board has instructed Management to review and adapt the Risk Management policies and Risk Register, to continuously implement 
and maintain adequate and effective internal controls and also to ensure that the processes and systems used are operating satisfactorily. 
This exercise is being conducted by the management and new procedures will be brought before the Board for approval at the following 
Board meeting. 

The activities of the risk management processes of the Company are further explained in note 4 of the Financial Statements. 

The Board has not identified any risk that threatens the solvency and liquidity of the organisation for the year under review. The Board 
also reviews the solvency and liquidity position of the Company on a yearly basis.

Strategic risk 
Owner: CEO 

The risk refers to adverse impact on the Company’s value, arising from management decisions regarding corporate strategies and 
their implementation. This risk emanates from (1) the compatibility between strategic goals and the resources available to achieve the 
goals and the (2) the ability to react to external factors (e.g. market conditions) which could affect the operations of the Company and 
ensure the resilience of certain services.

Strategy & planning The Board and the executive management monitor and manage the strategic goals to 
ensure that the investment strategies are successfully implemented and that the Company 
is able to grow its customer database, locally and on an international level. 

Customer, products, and markets risk 
Owner: CEO & Head of Business Development and Wealth Management 

Given that EKADA CAPITAL is client facing and deals with a range of investors, the Company might face risks relating to customer 
management, brand management, products and distribution management which can have an impact on the Company’s reputation, 
profitability and future business.

Customer There is a strong culture of analysis and understanding the customers’ requirements, 
risk appetite and restrictions to propose the appropriate investment advice to match 
the client’s expectations in terms of returns and risks associated with the proposed 
investments. 

EKADA CAPITAL also employs qualified staff who have appropriate sales capabilities and 
understand the regulatory framework within the industry.

Brand & marketing communication The brand and marketing communication of the Company are handled by skilled 
consultants in their respective field. 
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Principle 5: Risk governance and internal control (continued)
Risk management, internal controls and internal audit (continued)

Operational risk 
Owner: CEO 

The risks refer to the potential loss and/ or opportunity gain due to inadequate internal processes, human error and systems’ malfunction, 
fraud or from external events. EKADA CAPITAL is aware that its staff and processes might incur unforeseen errors. In evaluating 
operational risk, practical remedial steps are emphasised in order to eliminate exposures and ensure successful responses.

Legal and Regulatory The Company has efficient processes to mitigate regulatory risks and is regularly assisted 
by qualified professionals and experienced legal advisers to ensure compliance with 
governing laws and its licence requirements. It is only subject to the changes in the law in 
the Mauritian jurisdiction. 

Financial Crime Procedures and policies for money laundering reporting and fraud management have been 
established in line with local regulations. The Company also ensures that all employees are 
provided with ongoing training. 

The Money Laundering Reporting Officer (“MLRO”) was duly appointed and processes in 
case of suspicious transactions, high risks persons, and whistleblowing are instilled. 

People Recruitment of new personnel and retention of key, long serving staff is primordial to the 
business to maintain its competitive edge over its peers and further develop its business 
segments. EKADA CAPITAL has been involved in recruitments process to ensure there is 
high calibre personnel to undertake and execute the daily tasks. The Company ensures 
that the employees’ objectives are aligned to the interest of the Company. 

Related Party Transaction The Company may consider entering into related party transactions with other entities 
forming part of the IBL Group and Intrasia, in the course of normal operations, including 
trading, investments and services. 

Health and Safety The Company continually reviews the health and safety of its staff, in adherence to 
industry norms and standards, and to raise awareness among its staff regarding health 
and safety hazards. 

Communications Information shared to internal and external stakeholders is managed through designated 
and well-structured channels. 

Information Technology EKADA CAPITAL is focussing on improving the future systems capabilities. With significant 
changes underway, the Company is monitoring risks associated with the IT systems’ 
stability and internal control environment.

Financial risk 
Owner: CEO & Head of Accounting

Financial Reporting EKADA CAPITAL ensures that there is a maker and checker for each financial 
reporting process while having built-in system controls. Proper accounting 
record are maintained. The Chief Executive Officer reviews the monthly 
management accounts and analyses the actual performance to budget and 
enquires on significant deviations. 

Interest Rate/Foreign currency The Company examines the foreign exchange exposure by using risk 
measurement techniques. Movements in foreign exchange rates are analysed 
on an on-going basis and corrective prompt action is taken to mitigate any 
tail risk. The Company does not have significant exposure to interest rate risk.

Liquidity EKADA CAPITAL measures its liquidity risks on an ongoing basis, through 
cash flow forecasts and asset allocation. The Company aims at maintaining 
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Principle 6: Reporting with integrity
Statement of responsibility
The directors confirm that they are responsible for ensuring that:

• Adequate accounting records are kept and effective internal control systems are maintained.
• Accounts are prepared in order to fairly present the state of affairs of the Company and the results of its operations and that those 

accounts comply with Internal Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
• Appropriate accounting policies are applied and that they are supported by reasonable and prudent judgements.

Annual report available on website
The annual report including the audited financial statements of the Company can be found on its website: www.ekadacapital.com

Safety, health and environment
The Company believes in providing and maintaining a safe and healthy work environment for all is employees.

Political and charitable donations
The Company did not make any political or charitable donation during the year under review (2020: nil).

Principle 7: Audit
Internal audit
The internal audit service has been mandated to PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd (PWC) for the year ended 30 June 2021 through a letter of 
engagement, for the provision of internal audit services to evaluate and report on risk, operational and anti-money laundering processes. 
Internal audit is an element of the internal control framework established by management to examine, evaluate and report on accounting 
and other controls over operations. Internal audit assists management in the effective discharge of its responsibilities and functions by 
examining and evaluating controls.

The Internal audit function reports to the Board until the Audit and Risk Committee of EKADA CAPITAL is set up and helps in the review of 
information systems and related internal controls concerning examination of non-financial and operating information for management, 
review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of operations and of the functioning of non-financial indicators and controls, and the 
review of the implementation of corporate policies, plans and procedures.

The final internal audit report will be provided to the Board by end of September 2021.
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Principle 7: Audit (continued)
External audit
The Board is responsible for recommending the appointment and if necessary, the removal of the external auditors to the shareholder. 
Audit fees are set in a manner that enables an effective external audit on behalf of the shareholders. Audit fees paid to Ernst & Young, 
the external auditors in office, amounted to Rs 1,514,240 for the year under review (2020: Rs 598,000). The significant increase in fees 
from one year to the other is mainly explained by the engagement of the external auditors for the review of the financial statements of 
EKADA CAPITAL at 31 March 2021, for the purpose of the rights issue carried out in June 2021 (Rs 896,000 versus nil amount in 2020).

The external auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presented.

The newly created Audit and Risk Committee shall be responsible for reviewing the terms, nature and audit scope and approach and 
ensure no unjustified restrictions or limitations have been placed on the said scope. The external auditors have full, free and unrestricted 
access to the Audit and Risk Committee should they wish to discuss any matters privately and to all functions, records, property and 
personnel of the Company.

Non-audit services
The external auditors are prohibited from providing non-audit services where their independence might be compromised by later auditing 
their own work. Any other non-audit services provided by the external auditors are required to be specifically approved by the Board.

The following fees were paid in relation to non-audit services provided by Ernst & Young:

Service provided Fees paid in 2021 Fees paid in 2020

Tax advisory services Rs 23,000 Rs 33,350

Auditors’ independence
Auditors should observe the highest standards of business and professional ethics and in particular their independence should not be 
impaired in any manner.

The Audit and Risk Committee shall be responsible for monitoring the auditors’ independence, objectivity and compliance with ethical, 
professional and regulatory requirements and for maintaining control over the provision of non-audit services.

The said Committee will therefore be meeting with the external auditors without management being present as and when required.

Principle 8: Relations with shareholders and other key stakeholders
Shareholding structure as at 30 June 2021
The previous sole shareholder of the Company, namely AfrAsia Bank Limited, has, during the year under review distributed all of 
its 112,977,210 ordinary shares of no par value held in EKADA CAPITAL to its own shareholders, effective at 25 January 2021. 
The shareholding structure has therefore drastically changed: from being wholly owned by a sole shareholder, EKADA CAPITAL has 
more than 2,000 shareholders since January 2021. The Company has therefore been registered as a Reporting Issuer with the FSC since.

Besides, pursuant to a rights issue exercise effective since 29 June 2021, the stated capital of the Company has increased by 
Rs 50,000,000 with the issue of 166,666,667 ordinary shares of no par value. The stated capital of the Company at 30 June 2021 
therefore stood at Rs 53,600,001 divided into 279,643,877 ordinary shares of no par value (30 June 2020: Rs 3,600,001 divided into 
112,977,210 ordinary shares of no par value).

The major shareholding structure of the Company as at 30 June 2021 is depicted below:

EKADA CAPITAL LTD

IBL LTD
(listed on the Stock 

Exchange of Mauritius)

56.8 % 17.8% 25.3%

INTRASIA CAPITAL PTE LTD OTHER SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2021, there were 2,116 shareholders recorded in the share register of the Company, the ten largest of which are set 
out below:

Names
Number of shares Percentage held

(%)

IBL Ltd 158,849,270 56.80

Intrasia Capital Pte Ltd 49,982,973 17.87

SMS 3 Fund 11,370,606 4.07

Lagfin Immobilier Ltée 10,901,726 3.90

Mon Loisir Ltée 9,612,268 3.44

Airnergy Limited 7,307,815 2.61

Stam Investment Limited 4,349,701 1.56

Suzerain Investment Holdings Ltd 4,159,168 1.49

Esperance Holding Ltd 3,549,100 1.27

Mr Graeme Lance Robertson 3,105,244 1.11

Key stakeholders
The key stakeholders of the Company are its shareholders, employees, clients and foreign investment advisors.

Responsiveness to shareholders and stakeholders
The Company was a wholly owned subsidiary of AfrAsia Bank Limited at the time of the annual meeting 2020 and given the said 
shareholding structure, a written resolution has been signed by representatives of ABL in accordance with section 117 of the Mauritius 
Companies Act 2001 instead of holding an annual meeting.

Since the unbundling in January 2021, the Board places great importance on clear, open and transparent communication with all its new 
shareholders. It endeavours to keep them regularly informed on matters pertaining to and affecting the Company through official press 
announcements, disclosures in the annual report and at the annual or special meetings of shareholders, which all board members and 
shareholders are encouraged to attend.

The meetings of shareholders provide an opportunity for shareholders to raise and discuss matters with the Board relating to 
the Company, its performance, strategy and goals. The newly appointed chairpersons of the Audit and Risk Committee and of the 
Corporate Governance Committee shall be available at the next annual meeting to answer any questions relating to the work of these 
board committees. The external auditors shall also be present.

In its quest for a greener world, the Company has offered its shareholders the opportunity of receiving the soft copy of the annual reports 
and other corporate communications by email, instead of the printed paper versions.

The Company engages in a dialogue with other stakeholders through meetings, seminars and maintaining a client complaint register. 
The relevant stakeholders are therefore aware of the performance and outlook of the Company as and when deemed necessary.
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Principle 8: Relations with shareholders and other key stakeholders (continued)
Share registry and transfer office
The Company’s share registry and transfer office is administered by DTOS Registry Services Ltd since this year ended 30 June 2021.

Share price
No share price is published since the Company is not listed.

Dividend policy
The Company does not have any formal dividend policy and the dividend pay-out is subject to the performance of the Company and to 
the satisfaction of the solvency test as defined in the Companies Act 2001.

No dividend was declared for the financial year under review (2020: none).

Calendar of forthcoming shareholders’ events

November 2021 December 2021 February 2022 May 2022

Publication of  
first quarter results

Annual meeting 2021
Publication of  

second quater results
Publication of  

third quarter results

This corporate governance report has been approved by the Board on 15 September 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

       
Mr Laurent de la Hogue     Mr Alain Zerzuben
Chairperson      Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee

Statement of compliance
(Section 75 (3) of the Financial Reporting Act)
Name of PIE: EKADA CAPITAL (“the Company”)

Reporting period: 30 June 2021

We, the directors of EKADA CAPITAL, confirm that to the best of our knowledge, the Company has complied with the Corporate Governance 
Code for Mauritius (2016). The Company has applied all of the principles set out in the Code and explained how these principles have 
been applied.

       
Mr Laurent de la Hogue     Mr Alain Zerzuben
Chairperson      Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee

Date: 15 September 2021
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CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY
In accordance with Section 166(d) of the Companies Act 2001, we certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company 
has filed with the Registrar of Companies, for the financial year ended 30 June 2021, all such returns as required under the Companies 
Act 2001.

Doris Dardanne
IBL Management Ltd
Company Secretary

Date: 15 September 2021
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STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of EKADA CAPITAL LTD is the management of funds and investment portfolios of its clients and the distribution of 
financial products.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The results of the Company are shown on page 51 of this Annual Report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT 

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 are set out on pages 46 to 89. The auditor’s report on these financial statements 
appears on pages 48 to 49.

The Company has no subsidiary as at 30 June 2021 (2020: None).

DIRECTORS & OFFICERS

Date of appointment Date of resignation

Directors
Laurent de la Hogue 13 October 2015 -
Jean Claude Béga 13 October 2015 -
Sanjiv Bhasin 13 May 2016 08 February 2021
Graeme Robertson 13 October 2015 -
Thierry Vallet 9 March 2010 08 February 2021
Dipak Chummun 9 July 2018 23 June 2021
Eric Ambroise 31 January 2020 -
Christine Coothoopermal 23 June 2021 -
Kailash (Satyam) Ramnauth 30 July 2021 -
Alain Zerzuben 02 August 2021 -

Alternate Director
Francois Wertheimer 12 April 2019 -

Senior Officers
Amedée Maingard De la Ville-Es-Offrans
Sandrine Wong Kee Chuan

Company Secretary
IBL Management Ltd

DIRECTORS & OFFICERS INTERESTS IN SHARES, REMUNERATION, BENEFITS AND INDEMNITY INSURANCE

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH THE COMPANY

Mr Eric Ambroise, Executive Director, has a service contract with EKADA CAPITAL LTD expiring on 31 December 2022.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS AND REMUNERATION

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report.

DONATIONS

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of EKADA CAPITAL are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with applicable law 
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 
and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2001, and the Financial Reporting Act 2004 for each financial year. The financial 
statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that 
period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

• Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

• State that IFRS have been adhered to, subject to any material departures being disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

• Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless  it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in 
business; and

• Adhere compliance with the National Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius 2006 (“the Code”) which is based on an “apply and 
explain basis”.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records and maintaining an effective system of internal controls and risk 
management.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of 
the Company, to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting 
Act 2004. They also have the duty to safeguard the assets of the Company, and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of 
fraud and other irregularities. They are also responsible for maintaining an effective system of internal control and risk management.

The Directors hereby confirm that they have complied with the above requirements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 15 September 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

            

Mr Eric Ambroise    Mr Laurent de la Hogue
CEO     Chairperson 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF EKADA CAPITAL LTD

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of EKADA CAPITAL LTD (formerly known as AFRASIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LTD) (the “Company”) 
set out on pages 50 to 89 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and  the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2021, and of its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the 
Companies Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the “International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the “IESBA 
Code”)” and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements of the Company and in Mauritius. We have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 
performing audits of the Company and in Mauritius. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The  other information comprises the information included in the document titled 
“Ekada Capital Ltd Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021”, which includes the Statutory Disclosures, Corporate Information, 
Directors’ Responsibilities, Corporate Governance Report and the Certificate from Secretary as required by the Companies Act 2001, which we 
obtained prior to the date of this report, and the Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. The other information 
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information (other than the Corporate Governance Report) and we do not 
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Corporate Governance Report. Our responsibility under the Financial Reporting Act is to report 
on the compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance (‘’the Code’’) disclosed in the annual report and assess the explanations given for 
non-compliance with any requirement of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate governance in the Corporate 
Governance Report, the Company has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financial Reporting Act, complied with the requirements of the Code.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2001, and the Financial Reporting Act 2004, and for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF EKADA CAPITAL LTD

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

• As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. 
We also: Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by the directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has 
been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for 
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the 
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditor, tax advisors and dealings in the ordinary course 
of business.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our examination of those records.

ERNST & YOUNG ANDRE LAI WAN LOONG, F.C.A

Ebène, Mauritius Licensed by FRC

Date: 20 September 2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Notes 2021 2020

Rs. Rs.

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Plant and equipment 5 (a) 8,724,547 218,819

Intangible assets 5 (b) 251,170 74,939

Right of use asset 11 10,138,919 -

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 6 52,500 49,149

Deferred tax asset 10 58,817 115,136

19,225,953 458,043

Current assets

Other financial assets 7 - 4,397,517

Trade and other receivables 9 (a) 1,893,225 1,394,012

Contract receivables 9 (b) 6,274,253 9,109,578

Right of use asset 11 - 699,671

Due from related party 8 - 1,083,389

Cash and cash equivalents 90,608,688 14,878,273

98,776,166 31,562,440

Total assets 118,002,119 32,020,483

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Stated capital 12 53,600,001 3,600,001

(Accumulated losses) /Retained earnings (17,327,421) 8,430,957

Total equity 36,272,580 12,030,958

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Lease liability 11 7,473,121 -

Employee benefit liabilities 15 1,053,803 2,180,181

8,526,924 2,180,181

Current liabilities

Other financial liabilities 7 - 4,397,517

Trade and other payables 13 45,045,506 11,733,623

Lease liability 11 2,815,713 594,815

Borrowings 14 25,341,396 -

Structured notes 8 - 1,083,389

73,202,615 17,809,344

Total liabilities 81,729,539 19,989,525

Total equity and liabilities 118,002,119 32,020,483

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 September 2021.

            

Mr Eric Ambroise    Mr Laurent de la Hogue
CEO     Chairperson 

The notes on pages 54 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 48 to 49.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Notes 2021 2020

Rs. Rs.

Revenue from contracts with customers 17 28,817,078 40,590,785

Other income 98,382 1,276,505

Total revenue 28,915,460 41,867,290

Administrative expenses 18 (56,750,164) (48,396,357)

Operating loss (27,834,704) (6,529,067)

Finance costs 19 (335,582) (104,088)

Expected credit losses - (86,713)

Foreign exchange gain 498,867 1,031,043

Loss before tax (27,671,419) (5,688,825)

Income tax credit / (expense) 16 41,981 (543,639)

Loss after tax (27,629,438) (6,232,464)

Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods:  

Net movement on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 3,351 -

Remeasurement gain on employee benefit liabilities 1,966,009 1,008,060

Deferred tax (98,300) (50,403)

Total comprehensive loss for the year (25,758,378) (5,274,807)

The notes on pages 54 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 48 to 49.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Stated
capital

Retained 
earnings/

(Accumulated 
losses) Total

Rs. Rs. Rs.

At 1 July 2019 3,600,000 13,705,764 17,305,764 

Issue of shares (note 12) 1 - 1 

Loss for the year - (6,232,464) (6,232,464)

Other comprehensive income for the year - 957,657 957,657 

At 30 June 2020 3,600,001 8,430,957 12,030,958 

At 1 July 2020 3,600,001 8,430,957 12,030,958 

Issue of shares (note 12) 50,000,000 - 50,000,000 

Loss for the year - (27,629,438) (27,629,438)

Other comprehensive income for the year - 1,871,060 1,871,060 

At 30 June 2021 53,600,001 (17,327,421) 36,272,580 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Operating activities
Loss before tax (27,671,419) (5,688,825)
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation of plant and equipment (note 5 (a)) 462,125 438,322
- Depreciation of right of use asset (note 11) 1,638,470 1,399,341
- Amortisation of intangible assets (note 5 (b)) 95,019 10,682
- Foreign exchange differences (498,867) (1,031,043)
- Profit on sale of plant and equipment - (367,000)
- Fair value gain on other financial assets - (76,322,804)
- Interest expense (note 19) 335,582 104,088
Changes in working capital:
- Increase in trade and other receivables (499,213) (663,778)
- Decrease in contract receivables 2,835,325 2,798,061
- Increase in trade and other payables 5,989,332 5,056,004
- Increase in employee benefit liabilites 839,631 535,589
- Decrease in due from related party 1,083,384 135,373,600
- Net decrease in other financial assets and other financial liabilities - (867,741,292)
- Net decrease in derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities - (652,181,580)

- Decrease in structured notes (1,083,384) (135,373,600)
Cash absorbed by operations (16,474,015) (1,593,654,235)
Tax refund received (note 16(a)) - 3,866,008

Interest paid (111,188) (44,711)
Net cash used in operating activities (16,585,203) (1,589,832,938)
Investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment (note 5 (a)) (8,967,853) -
Acquisition of intangibles (note 5 (b)) (271,250) (84,306)
Proceeds on disposal of motor vehicle - 1,105,000
Acquisition of investments in financial assets - (128,634,999)

Proceeds on disposal of investments in financial assets - 1,724,880,675
Net cash (used in) / from investing activities (9,239,103) 1,597,266,370
Financing activities
Issue of shares (note 12) 50,000,000 1
Receipt of excess funds from rights issue (note 13) 27,322,551 -
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (note 11) (1,587,586) (1,563,574)
Repayment of borrowings (note 22) - (1,514,059)

Proceeds from borrowings (note 22) 25,320,889 -
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities 101,055,854 (3,077,632)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 75,231,548 4,355,800
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At 1 July 14,878,273 9,491,430
Increase 75,231,548 4,355,800

Net foreign exchange differences 498,867 1,031,043

At 30 June 90,608,688 14,878,273
Represented by:

Cash in hand and at bank 90,608,688 14,878,273

The notes on pages 54 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 48 to 49.

The notes on pages 54 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 48 to 49.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1 COMPANY PROFILE

EKADA CAPITAL LTD (formerly known as AfrAsia Capital Management Ltd) (the “Company”) has been converted from a private company 
limited by shares to a public company on 19 January 2021. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Mauritius and its principal 
activity is the management of fund and investment portfolio for its clients and distribution of financial products. The Company, a non-listed 
issuer, is  licensed by the Financial Services Commission as a CIS Manager, Investment Advisor and Distributor of Financial Products. 
The Company, being a non-banking financial institution, meets the definition of being a Public Interest Entity (“PIE”). The address of its 
registered office and its place of business is situated at IFC4 Building, Dr. Ferrière Street, Port Louis, 11328, Mauritius.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of directors on the date stamped on the statement of financial position 
and will be submitted for consideration and approval at the forthcoming annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The  financial 
statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for relevant financial assets and financial liabilities which are stated 
at their fair value.

The financial statements are denominated in Mauritian Rupees (“Rs”) which is the functional currency of the Company.

3.1 NEW AND REVISED IFRS APPLIED

In the current year, the Company has applied all the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB that were relevant to 
the Group and the Company’s operations and effective for accounting period beginning on 1 July 2020.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – Amendments regarding the definition of material

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors – Amendments regarding the definition of material

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the 
IBOR reform

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Amendments regarding definition of a business

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform

IFRS 9 Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform

IFRS 16 Leases - Amendments to provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a 
lease modification

The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on 29 March 2018

The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and  none of the concepts contained therein override the concepts or requirements in 
any standard. The  purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist the IASB in developing standards, to  help preparers develop 
consistent accounting policies where there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the 
standards. This will affect those entities which developed their accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised 
Conceptual Framework includes some new concepts, updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies 
some important concepts. These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3.2 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant IFRS and IFRICs were in issue but not yet effective on 
annual periods beginning on or after the respective dates as indicated:

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – Amendments regarding the disclosure of accounting policies (effective 1 January 2023)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – Amendments regarding the classification of liabilities as current and non-current 
(effective 1 January 2023)

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Amendments regarding the definition of accounting estimates 
(effective 1 January 2023)

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Amendments regarding deferred tax on leases and decommissioning obligations (effective 1 January 2023)

IAS 16 Property, Plant  and Equipment - Amendments prohibiting a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant  and 
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use (effective 
1 January 2022)

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Amendments regarding the costs to include when assessing whether 
a contract is onerous or loss making (effective 1 January 2022)

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR 
reform (effective 1 January 2021)

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Amendments updating a reference to the Conceptual Framework (effective 1 January 2022)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform (effective 
1 January 2021)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform (effective 1 January 2021)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020 (fees in the ‘10 per cent’ 
test for derecognition of financial liabilities) (effective 1 January 2022)

IFRS 16 Leases Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform (effective 1 January 2021)

IFRS 16 Leases Amendment to extend the exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease 
modification (effective 1 April 2021)

The Company is still assessing the potential impact of those standards and amendments to existing standards on its financial statements. 
The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principal accounting policies of the Company, which have been applied consistently, is set out below:

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or impairment loss, if any. Cost  includes the 
cost of replacing part of such plant and equipment when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment 
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of each asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life. 
Residual value is the estimated amount that the Company would currently obtain from disposal of the asset after deducting the estimated 
cost of disposal and if the asset was already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. The depreciation rates 
are as follows:

Motor vehicles 20%

Computer equipment 33.33%

Furniture and fittings 20%

Other equipment 33.33% - 50%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized. The  asset’s residual values, useful  lives and 
methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following  initial recognition, intangible  assets are 
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, 
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the income statement in the year in which the 
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful 
life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are 
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in profit or loss 
in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The  assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be 
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Acquired computer software licences are amortized over their estimated useful lives (3 years).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive 
income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and 
the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing 
component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair 
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain 
a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price 
determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the accounting policies “Revenue recognition under IFRS 15”.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows 
that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI 
test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash 
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, 
or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the 
market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

• Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

• Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

• Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity 
instruments)

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following 
conditions are met: 

• The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

And

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. 
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost includes trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments), due from related party 
and cash and cash equivalents.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair 
value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. 
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as other income in the statement 
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of 
part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through 
OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Company elected to classify irrevocably its listed and non-listed equity investments under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial  assets designated upon initial 
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are 
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated 
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets 
with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at fair value 
through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so 
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair 
value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized 
(i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, 
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to 
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or 
loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will 
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). 
For  those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a  loss allowance is 
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company 
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company 
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to 
the debtors and the economic environment.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk simplification. At every reporting date, the Company 
evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is 
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the internal credit rating of the debt instrument. 
In addition, the Company considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 
30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in  certain cases, 
the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is 
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. 
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Contract receivables

A contract receivable is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If  the Company performs by 
transferring services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract receivable is recognized 
for the earned consideration that is unconditional.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at  initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, 
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings, lease liability and structured notes.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon 
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category 
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as 
effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, 
and  only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The  Company’s financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss included other 
financial liabilities.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more information, refer to Note 14.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or  the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is 
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or 
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure 
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable

Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on the basis of the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed 
against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment 
based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair 
value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Company. Management considers observable 
data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided 
by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers 
have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the  Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, 
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined 
for an individual asset, unless  the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 
Company’s assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 
is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, 
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model 
is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available 
fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and forecast calculations 
generally cover a period of three to five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash 
flows after the fifth year.

Cash

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks, deposits and cash in hand.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

Related parties are individuals and companies where the individual or the Company has the ability directly or indirectly to control the other 
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s functional currency is the Mauritian Rupees (“Rs”), which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
it operates. The Company’s performance is evaluated and its liquidity is managed in ‘Rs’. Therefore, the Rs is considered as the currency 
that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The Company’s presentation 
currency is also the ‘Rs’.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the 
reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates 
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line 
with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is 
recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Revenue recognition under IFRS 15

Revenue is measured and recognized based on the five-step process outlined in IFRS 15. Revenue is determined based on the transaction 
price negotiated with the customer, net of rebates. Management fees, performance fees, retrocession fees and other revenues are derived 
from providing professional services to manage investment products.

Management fees are earned over time as services are provided and are generally based on a percentage of the market value of asset under 
management (“AUM”). These fees are calculated as a percentage of month-end average asset balance in accordance with contractual 
agreements.

Performance fees are specified in certain fund and client contracts and are based on investment performance either on an absolute basis 
or compared to an established index over a specified period of time. Performance fees are generated on certain management contracts 
when performance hurdles or other specified criteria are achieved. Performance  fees for all fund ranges and separate accounts are 
recognized when it is probable that a significant reversal of revenue can be clawed back. There are no cumulative revenues recognized 
that would be reversed if all of the existing investments became worthless.

Retrocession fees are based on an agreed percentage of the management fees of third party funds which are retroceded to the Company. 
The fees are recognized on a monthly basis and invoiced quarterly.

Management fees are primarily received monthly or quarterly. Performance fees are received on a quarterly or yearly basis depending on 
agreement with clients. Management and performance fees revenue earned but not yet received is recognized as contract receivables on 
the Company’s statement of financial position.

Retrocession fees are usually received quarterly by the Company. The fees are accrued on a monthly basis.

Commission from brokers are based on percentage of brokerage fees payable to brokers which are retroceded to the Company. The fees 
are recognized at a point in time.

Management fees and administration fees from CIS funds represent a percentage of the net asset value of the funds and are thus variable. 
The fees are accrued on a weekly basis.

Entry and exit fees represent variable consideration based on amount invested or disinvested by the customers. The fees are recognized 
at a point in time.

Commission fees from structured products are variable consideration with respect to transaction costs charged on the trade of structured 
products. The fees are recognized at a point in time.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Dividend distribution

Dividends distribution is recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the directors.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in 
the income statement net of any reimbursement.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the 
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the income statement. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred taxation

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the  carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused 
tax losses. Deferred  tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except when the 
deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the 
liability is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or subsequently enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in 
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred 
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Corporate social responsibility

In line with the definition within the Income Tax Act 1995, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is regarded as a tax and is therefore 
subsumed with the income tax recognised in the profit or loss and the income tax liability on the statement of financial position.

The CSR is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the Mauritian tax authorities. The CSR rate and laws used to compute the 
amount are those charged or substantively enacted by the reporting date. For  the year under review, the  Company did not have any 
CSR liability.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefit liability

Defined Contribution Pension Scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan are recognized as an expense when the employees have rendered service 
entitling them to the contributions.

Unfunded Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

The Company is liable to pay severance allowance to employees at the date of their retirements under the Workers´ Rights Act 2019. 
These benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing these benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains 
and losses in determining the present value of the unfunded obligations are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in other 
comprehensive income.

Such actuarial gains and losses are also immediately recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods. The past service costs are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over the average period until 
the benefits become vested (that is when the employee retires). If the benefits have already vested, immediately following changes in 
legislation, past service costs are recognized immediately.

Moreover, employees who resign as from 2020, are eligible for a portable gratuity benefit based on service with the employer as from 
1 January 2020 and remuneration at exit (same benefit formula as for retirement/death gratuity). For employees who are members of a 
pension plan, half of any lumpsum and 5 years of pension (relating to Employer’s share of contributions only) payable from the pension 
fund have been offset from the gratuities.

State plan

Contributions to the National Pension Scheme and Contribution Sociale Generalise (“CSG”) are expensed to profit or loss in the year they 
fall due.

3.4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets  and liabilities, and  the accompanying disclosures, and  the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of transactions and exchange differences arising 
therefrom are dependent on the functional currency selected. The directors have considered those factors described in the accounting 
policies with respect to the functional currency and have determined that the functional currency of the Company is the Mauritian 
Rupees (“Rs”).

Going concern

At 30 June 2021, the Company had net current asset position of Rs 25.6 million (2020: Rs 13.7 million), positive total equity balance of 
36.3 million (2020: Rs 12.0 million) and had made a loss before tax of Rs 27.7 million (2020: Rs 5.7 million) for the year ended 30 June 
2021.
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3.4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Judgements (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

The directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and are satisfied that the Company has 
the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. During the year, the Company, by the way of a rights issue, issued new 
ordinary shares amounting to Rs 50 million (refer to note 12). The Company also took recourse to loan facilities from its shareholders, 
IBL Ltd and IntrAsia Capital Pte Ltd, as well as from AfrAsia Bank Ltd during the year (refer to 14) to remediate its cash flow problem. 
These loans have already been settled after year end and the Company still have a positive cash balance. The directors do not foresee any 
unexpected expenses and are currently seeking new clients and assessing future investment opportunities to increase the revenue base.

Additionally, in light of the Covid-19 pandemic, the directors have re-assessed the going concern of the Company. The current Covid-19 
pandemic and the gradual re-opening of borders across many countries are enabling the investment managers to seek new clients 
internationally. The directors expect the Company to generate profits by 2024 given the initiatives being adopted. However, the directors 
acknowledge the unpredictability of the potential impact of the outbreak on the Company. Based on what is currently known to date, 
the  potential further adverse effects and the actions being taken by the Board of directors to minimise the effects of the pandemic, 
the directors believe that the going concern assumption is still appropriate.

The directors are therefore satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, 
the directors are not aware of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. Hence, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options – the Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to 
extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably 
certain not to be exercised. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the 
option to renew or terminate the lease.

That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the 
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its 
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold 
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Revenue from contract with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from 
contracts with customers:

Identify the performance obligations

The Company provides asset management services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the services are rendered 
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

The Company determined that management fees, retrocession fees, performance fees, administration, entry and exit fees and commission 
from structured products and other income are capable of being distinct since they are different services being provided and the contracts 
are separate.

Determine the transaction price

• Management fees are generated through investment management agreements and are generally based on an agreed percentage 
of the valuation of the assets under management (AUM).

• Retrocession fees are based on an agreed percentage of the valuation of the assets under management (AUM) of third party funds 
which are retroceded to the Company.
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3.4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Judgements (Continued)

Determine the transaction price (Continued)

• Performance fees are generated on certain management contracts when performance hurdles or other specified criteria are achieved.

• Commission from brokers are based on percentage of brokerage fees payable to brokers which are retroceded to the Company.

• Administration fees represent a percentage of the net asset value of the CIS funds and are thus variable. Entry and exit fees represent 
variable consideration based on the amount invested/ disinvested by the customer.

• Commission fees from structured products are variable consideration with respect to transaction costs charged on the trade of 
structured products.

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

The transaction price which comprises the variable consideration related to the management fee is allocated to each individual month as 
management fee related specifically to the entity’s efforts to provide management services during the month.

• Management fees are generated through investment management agreements and are generally based on an agreed percentage of 
the valuation of the assets under management (AUM). Management fees are earned over time.

• Retrocession fees are based on an agreed percentage of the valuation of the assets under management (AUM) of third party funds 
which are retroceded to the Company. The fees are earned over time.

• Performance fees are generated on certain management contracts when performance hurdles or other specified criteria are achieved. 
Performance fees are recognized at a point in time.

• Commission from brokers are based on percentage of brokerage fees payable to brokers which are retroceded to the Company. 
The fees are recognized at a point in time.

• Administration fees represent a percentage of the net asset value of the funds and are thus variable. The fees are earned over time.

• The entry and exit fees are allocated to each client investing or disinvesting from the Funds managed by the Company. The fees are 
recognized at a point in time.

• Commission fees from structured products are variable consideration with respect to transaction costs charged on the trade of 
structured products. The fees are recognized at a point in time.

Satisfaction of performance obligations

The Company concluded that the management and retrocession fees are recognized over time as the customer simultaneously receives 
and consumes the benefits provided by the Company when the latter discharges the service or the Company’s performance enhances the 
assets that the fund controls.

On the other hand, entry  and exit fees are recognized at a point in time as the benefits are obtained only upon new investment or 
disinvestment by a customer. Performance fees and commission from structured products are also recognized at a point in time as they 
are a one-off fee received upon the completion of the capital raising and at the start of the life of each product respectively.

Principal versus agent considerations

The Company determined that it is a principal in the contracts as it is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the 
specified service.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3.4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below. 
The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However, 
existing  circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising 
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Non-consolidation of Funds

The Directors have assessed the criteria of IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and have concluded that the Company does 
not have significant influence or control over the funds it invests in and thus does not need to prepare and present consolidated financial 
statements as it is only acting as an agent on behalf of the investors of the funds.

Expected credit losses

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract receivables. The provision rates are based on 
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type 
and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust 
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic 
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the financial services sector, 
the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant 
estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical 
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. 
The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables and contract receivables is disclosed in Note 4.1 and 9.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to 
measure lease liabilities in Note 11. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, 
and with a similar security, the  funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 
environment. The  IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which  requires estimation when no observable rates 
are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using 
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activity exposes it to a variety of financial risks, including:

• interest rates risk;

• credit risk;

• liquidity risk; and

• foreign exchange risk.

Interest rate risk

As the Company has interest-bearing assets and liabilities, revenue and operating cash flows are exposed to interest rate risk. 

At 30 June 2021 and 2020, the impact of interest rates on the Company’s financial assets and liabilities is minimal. The interest-bearing 
loans have already been settled after reporting date. As  such, the  effect of the analysis on the Company’s profit before tax would 
be negligible.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered 
into with the Company. Ageing of trade receivables is disclosed in note 9. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk.

The Company’s credit risk is managed by the Chief Executive Officer subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control 
relating to customer credit risk management.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision 
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the 
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting 
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past 
due for more than 90 days and are not subject to enforcement activity. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company 
evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract receivables as low, as  its customers are located in 
several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Company’s trade receivables and contract receivables using a 
provision matrix: 

At 30 June 2021 Trade receivables and contract receivables

Days past due

Trade Receivables
Contract 

receivables

< 30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days >91 days Total Total

Estimated total gross carrying amount 
at default -  -  330,446 5,459 335,905 6,301,664 

Expected credit loss (note 9 (a) & 9 (b)) -  -  (95,937) -  (95,937) (27,411)

-  -  234,509 5,459 239,968 6,274,253 

At 01 July 2020 Trade receivables and contract receivables

Days past due

< 30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days >91 days Total
Contract 

receivables

Estimated total gross carrying amount 
at default 885,460 -  79,628 4,796 969,884 9,136,989 

Expected credit loss (66,642) -  (24,499) (4,796) (95,937) (27,411)

818,818 -  55,129 -  873,947 9,109,578 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with the 
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each 
counterparty. Counterparty  credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis. The  limits are set to 
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. 
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum credit exposure

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date without taking account of any collateral held and other credit enhancements 
is as disclosed below:

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Trade and other receivables (note 9 (a)) 242,485 988,497 
Contract receivables (note 9 (b)) 6,274,253 9,109,578 
Other financial assets - bonds (note 7 (a)) - 4,397,517 
Due from ultimate holding company (note 9 (b)) - 1,083,389 

Cash and cash equivalents 90,608,688 14,878,273 

97,125,426 30,457,254 

Trade and other receivables exclude deposits of Rs 395,553 (2020: nil) and prepayments of Rs 1,255,187 (2020: Rs 394,912).

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the  availability of funding from an 
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market conditions. The Company aims at maintaining flexibility 
in funding by keeping committed credit lines available. 

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of 
the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

Less than More than

1 year 1 year Total

At 30 June 2021 Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade and other payables 45,045,506 - 45,045,506 

Lease liability (note (i)) 3,011,889 8,370,888 11,382,777 

Borrowings 25,341,396 - 25,341,396 

73,398,791 8,370,888 81,769,679 

At 30 June 2020

Other financial liabilities 4,397,517 - 4,397,517 

Trade and other payables 11,733,623 - 11,733,623 

Lease liability 594,815 - 594,815 

16,725,955 - 16,725,955 

(i) The lease liability is based on contractual undiscounted payments.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures primarily with respect to EURO, United States 
Dollars (USD), Great Britain pounds (GBP), Swiss franc (CHF) and Australian Dollars (AUD). 

Difference on exchange resulting from settlement of transactions denominated in foreign currencies is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

EUR AUD USD GBP CHF ZAR MUR Total

As at 30 June 2021 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and bank balances 694,484 19,366 3,339,317 - - - 86,555,521 90,608,688 

Trade and other 
receivables 5,459 - 193,257 41,252 - - 398,070 638,038 

Contract receivables - - - - - - 6,274,253 6,274,253 

Financial assets at fair 
value through Other 
Comprehensive Income - - 42,500 - - - 10,000 52,500 

Borrowings - - - - - - (25,341,396) (25,341,396)

Lease liabilities - - - - - - (10,288,834) (10,288,834)

Trade and other payables - - - - - - (45,045,506) (45,045,506)

EUR AUD USD GBP CHF ZAR MUR Total

As at 30 June 2020 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and bank balances 3,484,986 - 6,870,288 - - - 4,522,999 14,878,273 

Trade and other 
receivables 102,737 - 575,332 3,105 - 32,672 680,166 1,394,012 

Contract receivables - - - - - - 9,109,578 9,109,578 

Financial assets at fair 
value through Other 
Comprehensive Income 75 6,387 32,269 - - - 10,418 49,149 

Due from ultimate holding 
company 55,010 - 1,018,371 - - - 10,008 1,083,389 

Other financial assets 4,395,931 - 722 864 - - - 4,397,517 

Lease liabilities - - - - - - (594,815) (594,815)

Structured notes (55,010) - (1,018,371) - - - (10,008) (1,083,389)

Trade and other payables (87,662) - (371,983) - - - (11,425,720) (11,885,365)

Other financial liabilities (4,395,931) - (722) (864) - - - (4,397,517)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 30 June 2021, if the rupee had weakened/strengthened by 100 basis points against the AUD/USD/GBP/EUR/CHF with all variables held 
constant, post tax profit of the Company for the year would have been Rs 43,356 (2020: Rs 94,462) higher/lower and equity would have 
been Rs 425 (2020: nil), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of foreign currencies denominated net assets 
over liabilities.

The Company examines the foreign exchange exposure by using risk measurement techniques. Movement in foreign exchange rates is 
analysed on an on-going basis and corrective prompt action is taken to mitigate any tail risk.

Options are contractual agreements that convey the right, but not the obligation, for the purchaser either to buy or sell a specific amount 
of a financial instrument at a fixed price, either at a fixed future date or at any time within a specified period.

Options purchased by the Company provide the Company with the opportunity to purchase (call options) or sell (put options) the underlying 
asset at an agreed-upon value either on or before the expiration of the option. Options are generally settled on a net basis. 

4.2 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A market 
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, 
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

- Level 1: Fair value measurements are those derived from quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities.

- Level 2: Fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable for the asset, wither directly or indirectly.

- Level 3: Fair value measurements are those derived from Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measureemnt is unobservable not based on observable market data.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company 
considers a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. 
The cost basis has been used to determine the fair value for the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. 
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cashflows at the current 
market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar financial instruments.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.3 Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

• to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and 
benefits for other stakeholders; and

• to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk. 

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it 
in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital 
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. During the year under review, the Company issued equity shares by way 
of a rights issue totalling Rs 50 million.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within 
net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

During the reporting year ended 30 June 2021, the  Company’s strategy, which  was unchanged from 2020, was  to maintain the 
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the lower end, in order to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost. 

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020 were as follows:

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Interest-bearing borrowings 35,630,230 594,815 
Trade and other payables 45,045,506 11,733,623 

Less: cash and cash equivalents (90,608,688) (14,878,273)
Net debt (9,932,952) (2,549,835)

Total equity 36,272,580 12,030,958 

Equity and net debt 26,339,628 9,481,123 

Gearing ratio N/A N/A 
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5(a). PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer
equipment

Furniture
and

fittings
Other

equipment
Construction in 

progress Total

COST Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At 1 July 2020 3,663,469 378,673 31,511  -   4,073,653 

Additions 2,108,683 - 168,359  6,690,811  8,967,853 

At 30 June 2021 5,772,152 378,673 199,870  6,690,811  13,041,506 

DEPRECIATION

At 1 July 2020 3,455,168 368,155 31,511  -   3,854,834 

Charge for the year 435,110 10,518 16,497  -   462,125 

At 30 June 2021 3,890,278 378,673 48,008  -   4,316,959 

NET BOOK VALUE

At 30 June 2021 1,881,874 - 151,862  6,690,811  8,724,547 

Computer
equipment

Furniture
and

fittings
Other

equipment
Motor 

vehicle Total

COST Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At 1 July 2019 3,663,469 378,673 31,511  3,734,100  7,807,753 

Disposals - - -  (3,690,000)  (3,690,000)

At 30 June 2020 3,663,469 378,673 31,511  44,100  4,117,753 

DEPRECIATION

At 1 July 2019 3,027,526 357,475 31,511  2,996,100  6,412,612 

Disposal - - -  (2,952,000)  (2,952,000)

Charge for the year 427,642 10,680 -  -   438,322 

At 30 June 2020 3,455,168 368,155 31,511  44,100  3,898,934 

NET BOOK VALUE

At 30 June 2020 208,301 10,518 -  -   218,819 

Depreciation charge of Rs. 462,125 (2020: Rs. 438,322) have been charged in administrative expenses.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5(b). INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software 

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
COST
At 1 July 675,512 591,206 

Additions 271,250 84,306 
At 30 June 946,762 675,512 
AMORTISATION
At 1 July 600,573 589,891 

Charge for the year 95,019 10,682 
At 30 June 695,592 600,573 
NET BOOK VALUE

At 30 June 251,170 74,939 

6 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
At 01 July 49,149 49,149 

Net movement on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 3,351 - 

At 30 June 52,500 49,149 

EKADA Capital effectively holds 100% of the management shares of ACM India Focus Fund Ltd and ACM High Yield Fund Ltd. These investee 
companies (the “investment vehicle”) are not considered as subsidiary companies of EKADA Capital under IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial 
Statements”, as the Company is acting as an agent for the investors in the investment vehicles and receives market-based remuneration 
(management fees) that is commensurate with the services it provides. 

Investments held in ACM Global Equity Fund Limited, ACM Global Bond Fund Limited, ACM Aussie Ltd, ACM European Ltd and Afrasia 
Partners Fund Ltd have been impaired during the year.

The investments are classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as the Company holds management shares in the funds, whereby the 
fair values have been based on cost and the company is entitled to the amount invested.
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7. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES 

Assets Liabilities 

2021 2020 2021 2020

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets held for trading

- Equities  -  4,397,517  -  4,397,517 

At 30 June  -  4,397,517  -  4,397,517 
Analysed as:

Current  -  4,397,517  -  4,397,517 

 -  4,397,517  -  4,397,517 

The investments are classified in the Level 2 hierarchy. During the reporting years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, there were no transfers 
between the levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies. Financial instruments included in this level included 
corporate bonds and loans, government and agency securities, less liquid and restricted equity securities, and certain over-the-counter 
derivatives where the fair value is based on observable inputs. 

During the reporting year, the clients have opened sub accounts, where all the assets have been transferred to.

8. DUE FROM RELATED PARTY AND STRUCTURED NOTES

ASSETS 2021 2020

Due from related party:  Rs.  Rs. 
Deposits and balances with holding company:

Current  -  1,083,389 

LIABILITIES
Structured notes as client monies:

Current  -  1,083,389 

The above balance was unsecured and interest-free.

Structured notes are capital protected contracts and represent the discounted value of the capital of investors, subject to the credit risk 
of the issuer.

Correspondingly, the amounts due from the holding company represents the funds invested therewith which at maturity will yield a sum 
equal to the capital protected by the issuer to the investors.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

9(a). TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Trade receivables:
- Receivables from trade debtors (net)  239,968  873,947 
Other receivables  398,070  125,153 

Prepayments  1,255,187  394,912 

 1,893,225  1,394,012 

The average credit period is 90 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables. Provision for impairment of receivables is calculated 
using the simplified approach under IFRS 9.

As at 30 June, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2021 2020

 Rs.  Rs. 
Neither past due nor impaired
< 30 days  -  818,818 
30 - 60 days  -  - 
60 - 90 days  234,509  55,129 

Past due but not impaired
90 - 180 days  -  - 

> 180 days  5,459  - 

 239,968  873,947 

Movement in the allowance for expected credit loss of trade receivable:
 Rs.  Rs. 

Balance at start of year  95,132  728,656 
Recovered during the year  - (728,656) 

Addition  -  95,132 

Balance at end of year  95,132  95,132 
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10. DEFERRED TAXES

(a) Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method at 5%.

There is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets and liabilities when 
the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority of the same entity.

The following amounts are shown in the statement of financial position:

2021 2020

Rs.  Rs. 

Deferred tax assets 58,817  115,136 

(b) The movement in the deferred tax assets is as follows:

2021 2020

Rs.  Rs. 
At 1 July 115,136  709,178 
Movement for the year: profit or loss 41,981  (543,639)

Movement for the year: other comprehensive income (98,300)  (50,403)

At 30 June 58,817  115,136 

(c) Deferred tax

Statement of financial position 
Statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income 

2021 2020 2021 2020

Rs. Rs. Rs.  Rs. 
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes - - -  47,660 
Employee benefit liabilities 52,690 109,009 56,319  23,624 
Expected credit losses 6,127 6,127 -  (4,296)

Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income - - -  527,054 

Deferred tax benefit 56,319  594,042 

Net deferred tax assets 58,817 115,136 

Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows:
Deferred tax assets 58,817 115,136 

Deferred tax liabilities - - 

Net deferred tax assets 58,817 115,136 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

9(a). TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a) The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value due to their short-term nature.

(b) The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

 Rs.  Rs. 
Mauritian Rupee  1,653,257  680,166 
United States Dollars  193,257  575,332 
ZAR  -  32,672 
Euro  5,459  102,737 

British Pound  41,252  3,105 

 1,893,225  1,394,012 

9(b). CONTRACT RECEIVABLES

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Contract receivables:
- Receivables from related companies (note 21)  -  2,186,238 

- Receivables from third parties  6,274,253  6,923,340 

 6,274,253  9,109,578 

Contract receivables are initially recognised for revenue as per the agreement in place between the Company and the customers. 
Upon invoicing of the fees, the amount recognised as contract receivables are reclassified to trade receivables. In 2021, no additional 
provision was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on contract receivables (2020: 27,411).

Movement in allowance for expected credit loss

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Balance at 01 July  27,411  35,830 

Movement  - (8,419) 

Balance at 30 June  27,411  27,411 
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11. RIGHT OF USE ASSET AND LEASE LIABILITY

The Company leases office premises comprising of building and parking areas. The initial lease term is 5 years with the option of renewal, 
which the Company is expected to exercise.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right of use assets recognised and the movements during the year.

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
At 01 July  699,671  - 
Recognition of right of use asset upon initial recongnition of IFRS 16  -  2,099,012 
Additions  11,077,718  - 

Depreciation expense for the year ended (note 18) (1,638,470) (1,399,341) 

At 30 June  10,138,919  699,671 

LEASE LIABILITY

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year.

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
At 01 July  594,815  - 
Recognition of lease liability upon initial recongnition of IFRS 16  -  2,099,012 
Additions  11,077,718  - 
Lease payments (1,587,586) (1,563,574) 
Interest expense (note 19)  203,887  59,377 

At 30 June  10,288,834  594,815 

The following are the amounts recognised in the profit or loss:
Depreciation expense on right of use asset  1,638,470  1,399,341 

Interest expense on lease liabilities  203,887  59,377 

Total amount recognised in profit or loss  1,842,357  1,458,718 

Analysed as: Rs. Rs.
Non-current  7,473,121  - 
Current  2,815,713  594,815 

Maturity analysis

The table below summarised the maturity profile of the Company’s lease liability based on contractual undiscounted payments.

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Not later than one year  3,011,889  594,815 
Later than one year and not later than five years  8,370,888  - 

Later than 5 years  -  - 

 11,382,777  594,815 

The effective interest rates were 4.40% (2020: 4.40%)

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs 1,587,586 (2020: 1,563,574)

The Company does not deem to have future cash flows for terminations and renewal options that are not reasonably certain to be exercised.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

11. RIGHT OF USE ASSET AND LEASE LIABILITY (CONTINUED)

The Company had lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by the directors and align 
with the Company’s business needs. The directors exercise significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination 
options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

12. STATED CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid 2021 2020 2021 2020

 Number of 
ordinary shares Rs. Rs.

At 1 July  112,977,210  360,000  3,600,001  3,600,000 

Issue of shares  166,666,667  112,617,210  50,000,000  1 

At 30 June  279,643,877  112,977,210  53,600,001  3,600,001 

During the year, the Company issued 166,666,667 additional shares to its shareholders as part of a rights issue at an issue price of Rs 0.30 
per share for a total consideration of Rs 50,000,000.

The ordinary shares have been issued at no par value, carry  rights to one vote per share and to dividend and pre-emptive rights in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Trade payables  3,474,949  1,232,815 
Payable to related companies (notes c and 21)  12,076,204  916,747 
Due to investors (note c)  15,246,347  - 

Other payables and accruals  14,248,006  9,584,061 

 45,045,506  11,733,623 

(a) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. 

(b) The average credit period on trade payables is 30 days and no interest is charged on trade payables and amount due to related parties. 
The Company has setup policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

(c) During the year, the Company raised additional capital through a rights issue up to a maximum of Rs 50 million. Through this exercise, 
the Company managed to raise more funds than targeted and had an obligation to refund the proportionate share to its shareholders after 
year end. All excess funds received were unsecured and interest free.

14. BORROWINGS

Effective 
interest rate Maturity 2021 2020

% Rs. Rs.
Current
Shareholders’ loan - IBL Ltd (note 21) 5.4 31 July 2021  9,673,563  - 
Shareholders’ loan - Intrasia Capital Pte Ltd (note 21) 5.4 31 July 2021  3,046,944  - 

Bank loan 4.4

6 months 
after initial 

disbursement  12,620,889  - 

 25,341,396  - 

The shareholders’ loans were unsecured and have been fully repaid along with accrued interest after year end. The bank loan was secured 
by a letter of undertaking from the new major shareholders.
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes were:

2021 2020

% %
Discount rate 5.3% 3.8%

Future salary increase 3.0% 5.0%

Maturity profile of employee benefit liability

The average working remaining life of the employees under the scheme at 30 June 2021 is 60 years (2020: 60 years)

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Increase due to 1% decrease in discount rate 317,113 613,630 
Decrease due to 1% increase in discount rate 255,930 489,642 
Increase due to 1% increase in salary increase assumption 321,501 599,288 
Decrease due to 1% decrease in salary decrease assumption 263,197 488,706 

The above sensitivity analysis has been carried out by recalculating the present value of obligation at end of the period after increasing 
or decreasing the discount rate or salary increase rate occuring at the end of the reporting year, while  leaving all other assumptions 
unchanged. Any similar variation in the other assumptions would have shown smaller variations in the defined benefit obligation.

The weighted average duration of the liabilities at 30 June 2021 is 16 years (2020: 21 years)

16. INCOME TAX

(a) The amount recognised in the statement of financial position is as follows:

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Tax asset at 1 July - (3,866,008)

Income tax refund - 3,866,008 

Tax (asset)/liability at 30 June - - 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES

The unfunded liability represents the Retirement Gratuities under the Workers’ Rights Act 2019 payable either to employees not covered 
by the defined contribution scheme or to employees whose benefits under the scheme are underfunded when compared to the amount of 
severance allowance calculated by the actuary. These benefits are payable at the retirement date of the employees.

The liability relates to employees who are entitled to statutory benefits prescribed under the Workers’ Rights Act. The latter provides for 
a lump sum at retirement or death, whichever occurs earlier, based on final salary and years of service. Prior to the implementation of the 
Portable Retirement Gratuity Fund, these benefits are unfunded as at 31 December 2019. Moreover, employees who resign as from 2020, 
are eligible for a portable gratuity benefit based on service with the employer as from 1 January 2020 and remuneration at exit (same 
benefit formula as for retirement/death gratuity.

The formula used is 15/26 of monthly remuneration per year of service, including the 13th month bonus and any additional emoluments.

The actuarial valuation was carried out at 30 June 2021 by Swan Life Ltd, an independent and experienced valuer.

Amount recognised in the statement of financial position: 2021 2020

Rs. Rs.

Present value of obligations  1,053,803  2,180,181 

Net costs for the year: 2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Current service cost  756,784  379,083 
Net interest cost  82,847  156,506 

Actuarial gains recognised in other comprehensive income  (1,966,009)  (1,008,060)

Net cost for the year  (1,126,378)  (472,471)

Changes in the Present Value of the Obligations: 2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of year  2,180,181  2,652,652 
Current service cost  756,784  379,083 
Net interest cost  82,847  156,506 

Actuarial gain  (1,966,009)  (1,008,060)

Expected obligation at end of year  1,053,803  2,180,181 

Movements in liability recognised in statement of financial position: 2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Net liability at beginning of year  2,180,181  2,652,652 
Net expense recognised in:
- Profit or loss (note 20)  839,631  535,589 

- Other comprehensive income  (1,966,009)  (1,008,060)

Net liability at end of the year  1,053,803  2,180,181 
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16. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b) The amount recognised in the profit or loss statement is as follows:

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Current income tax  -  - 

Deferred tax  41,981 (543,639) 

Income tax credit / (expense) recognised in profit or loss  41,981 (543,639) 

(c)  The tax on the Company’s loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate as follows:

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.

Loss before tax (27,671,419) (5,688,825) 
Tax calculated at 5% (2020: 5%) (1,383,571) (284,441) 
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  2,299,797  1,948,760 
Income not subject to tax  - (18,350) 
Partial exemption regime (1,152,683) (1,665,053) 

Tax loss for the year  236,457  19,084 
 -  - 

Corporate social responsibility  -  - 

 -  - 

Deferred tax (note 10 (b))  -  - 

Income tax expense/ (credit) recognised in profit or loss  -  - 

The Company is entitled to a 80% partial exemption on selected income activities and is taxed at the rate of 5%.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

17. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

 30 June 2021 Management 
fees

Retrocession 
fees

Commission 
income

Performance 
fees

Administration 
fees

Entry and 
exit fees Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Management fees  26,541,500  -  -  -  -  -  26,541,500 

Retrocession fees  -  681,116  -  -  -  -  681,116 

Commission from brokers  -  -  270,005  -  -  -  270,005 

Commission fees  -  -  1,006,314  -  -  -  1,006,314 

Performance fees  -  -  -  137,635  -  -  137,635 

Administration fees  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Entry and exit fees  -  -  -  -  -  180,508  180,508 

 26,541,500  681,116  1,276,319  137,635  -  180,508  28,817,078 

Geographical markets

France  106,782  -  -  -  -  -  106,782 

Luxembourg  -  681,116  -  -  -  -  681,116 

Mauritius  24,343,565  -  1,276,319  137,635  -  180,508  25,938,027 

Cyprus  460,045  -  -  -  -  -  460,045 

United Kingdom  52,774  -  -  -  -  -  52,774 

African region  1,578,334  -  -  -  -  -  1,578,334 

Total revenue from 
contracts with customers  26,541,500  681,116  1,276,319  137,635  -  180,508  28,817,078 

Timing of revenue 
recognition

Services transferred at a 
point in time  -  - 1,276,319 137,635  - 180,508  1,594,462 

Services transferred 
over time 26,541,500 681,116  -  -  -  - 27,222,616 

Total revenue from 
contracts with customers 26,541,500 681,116 1,276,319 137,635  - 180,508 28,817,078 



86 | EKADA ANNUAL REPORT 2021 EKADA ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 87 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

18. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Employee benefit expense (note 20) 31,788,518 33,279,189 
Directors’ fees 8,706 560,000 
Depreciation (note 5 (a)) 462,125 438,322 
Amortisation (note 5 (b)) 95,019 10,682 
Licences 324,660 195,000 
Research and documention cost 2,465,328 1,286,903 
Parking and utilities 2,833,727 566,636 
Insurance costs 1,306,225 362,822 
IT costs 1,468,841 - 
Professional fees 6,505,071 6,496,919 
Professional fees related to rights issue 2,291,000 - 
Commission 1,488,832 63,641 
Office expenses 1,048,127 1,533,694 
Motor vehicle running expenses - 195,412 
Bank charges 188,142 124,632 
Custody charges 90,857 684,915 
Overseas travel 1,069,084 209,171 
Depreciation expense on right of use asset (note 11) 1,638,470 1,399,341 
Amortisation of deposit 95,338 - 
Marketing and events 1,582,094 951,839 

Staff training - 37,239 

56,750,164 48,396,357 

19. FINANCE COSTS

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Interest expense on lease liability (203,887) (59,377) 

Interest expense (131,695) (44,711) 

Net finance costs (335,582) (104,088) 

20. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Salaries and wages 29,024,834 30,860,644 
Pension costs 1,014,548 1,262,911 
Social security costs 909,505 620,045 

Retirement benefit obligations (note 15) 839,631 535,589 

31,788,518 33,279,189 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

17. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

30 June 2020 Management 
fees

Retrocession 
fees

Commission 
income

Performance 
fees

Administration 
fees

Entry and 
exit fees Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Management fees  30,177,148  -  -  -  -  -  30,177,148 

Retrocession fees  -  5,491,999  -  -  -  -  5,491,999 

Commission from brokers  -  -  1,461,312  -  -  -  1,461,312 

Commission fees  -  -  575,636  -  -  -  575,636 

Performance fees  -  -  -  2,664,268  -  -  2,664,268 

Administration fees  -  -  -  -  647  -  647 

Entry and exit fees  -  -  -  -  -  219,775  219,775 

 30,177,148  5,491,999  2,036,948  2,664,268  647  219,775  40,590,785 

Geographical markets

France  -  220,888  -  -  -  -  220,888 

Luxembourg  -  1,344,217  -  -  -  -  1,344,217 

Mauritius  30,177,148  132,387  2,036,948  2,664,268  647  219,775  35,231,173 

The Netherlands  -  2,453,604  -  -  -  -  2,453,604 

United Kingdom  -  1,340,903  -  -  -  -  1,340,903 

Total revenue from 
contracts with customers  30,177,148  5,491,999  2,036,948  2,664,268  647  219,775  40,590,785 

Timing of revenue 
recognition

Services transferred at a 
point in time  -  - 2,036,948 2,664,268  - 219,775  4,920,991 

Services transferred 
over time 30,177,148 5,491,999  -  - 647  - 35,669,794 

Total revenue from 
contracts with customers 30,177,148 5,491,999 2,036,948 2,664,268 647 219,775 40,590,785 
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key 
management 

personnel
Holding 

company Shareholders

Enterprises 
with common 
shareholders 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs. Rs.

30 June 2021

Emoluments of key management personnel

 11,812,192  -  -  - 

Purchases of services  -  -  -  471,794 

Amount owed to  -  18,606,229  6,190,482  12,620,889 

Key 
management 

personnel

Ultimate 
holding 

company Shareholders

Enterprises
with common
 shareholders 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs. Rs.

30 June 2020

Emoluments of key management personnel

 10,844,449  -  -  - 

Sales of services  -  -  -  10,417,554 

Purchases of services  -  2,922,602  -  - 

Deposits and bank balances  -  10,164,712  -  - 

Amount owed to  -  916,747  -  - 

Amount owed by  -  -  -  2,186,238 

(a) Key Management Personnel Compensation

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
Salaries and short-term employee benefits  11,812,192  10,844,449 

Post-employment benefits  -  - 

 11,812,192  10,844,449 

(b) Terms and conditions of transaction with related parties

The amount owed to/by related parties are unsecured and interest-bearing (refer to note 14) and settlement occurs in cash. There has 
been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For  the year ended 30 June 2021, there  is no 
provision for expected credit losses relating to amounts owed by related parties (2020: Rs 6,558). This assessment is undertaken each 
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

22. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities, for which cash flows were, and future cash 
flows will be classified as ‘financing activities’ in statement of cash flows.

1 July 2020
Financing 

cash flows Other 30 June 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Borrowings  -  25,320,889  -  25,320,889 

Lease liabilities  594,815  (1,587,586)  -  (992,771)

 594,815  23,733,303  -  24,328,118 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

23. CLIENT MONIES

2021 2020

Rs. Rs.
At 1 July  110,059,612  1,689,848,158 

Net movement  13,221,390  (1,579,788,546)

At 30 June  123,281,002  110,059,612 

The Company entered into an arrangement with its clients as from year 2020 onwards, whereby the latter are now managing their own 
funds. As such, clients’ monies have been disclosed off-balance sheet as the Company does not derive any economic benefit therefrom.

24. HOLDING COMPANY

The previous sole shareholder of the Company, namely  AfrAsia Bank Limited, has, during  the year under review distributed all of its 
112,977,210 ordinary shares of no par value held in EKADA to its own shareholders.The directors now regard IBL Ltd, a  company 
incorporated in Mauritius, as the holding company. 

25. IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

During the financial year under review, the  Covid-19 pandemic had a significantly negative impact on global financial markets and 
economies, including Mauritius and the jurisdictions in which the Company does business. 

The principal activity of the Company is the management of fund and investment portfolio for its clients and distribution of financial 
products. Derivative  financial instruments, equity  investments and bond indices, which  have proved highly popular with investors 
in recent years, have  been exposed to the market volatility arising from Covid-19 pandemic, where  some of these instruments have 
suffered losses since the begining of the pandemic. The Company continued interaction with its clients and counterparties remotely, 
notably  through various online workshops and investor conferences when travel restrictions were imposed across many countries 
because of the pandemic. These initiatives were well supported and were key in mitigating the potentially damaging effect of the pandemic 
on the Company. In the likelihood, several countries have begun lifting travel restrictions with the increasing vaccination rate occurring 
(including Mauritius) and the directors are being able to travel to some countries to seek new clients. The directors are monitoring the 
situation closely due to the second wave currently occurring in Mauritius and have adopted various measures to mitigate the risks 
involved such as crisis management and business continuity planning with constant tracking of the Company’s client base, alongside a 
regular monitoring of macroeconomic developments in the markets the Company operates.

The directors have also assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. When making that assessment, where relevant, 
management takes into consideration the existing and anticipated effects of the outbreak on the entity’s activities in its assessment 
of the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis. The directors are satisfied that the Company have enough resources to 
continue in business for the foreseeable future. 

26. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(a) The Company has refunded the excess funds of Rs 27,322,551 raised through the rights issue to its investors subsequent to year end.

(b) The borrowings, along with accrued interest have been fully repaid after year end on 14 July 2021.

Other than the above, there are no further events which would need to be disclosed in these financials.
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